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CHAIRMAN'’S
MESSAGE

DISTINGUISHED SHAREHOLDERS,

It gives me immense pleasure to present before
you, the 13™ Annual Report of your Company. The
Audited Accounts of the Company for the financial
year 2024-25, along with the Directors’ Report and

reports of Auditors have been circulated.

As we all are aware, your Company was established
with the mandate of High-Speed Rail Corridor
Feasibility Studies for and on behalf of Ministry of
Railways. Later, after successful completion of HSRC
Feasibility Studies, your company expanded its
horizons and at present, the Company is executing
PMC contracts awarded by RVNL & JSW and acting
as bidding branch of RVNL (the holding Company).
The contribution of HSRC Infra Services Limited in
the domain of Transportation Infrastructure has
been amply demonstrated by its performance and
presence in 36 Project Sites across the length and
breadth of the Country. As bidding branch of RVNL,

its accomplishments are highly appreciable.
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It gives me immense pleasure to
present before you, the 13" Annual
Report of your Company. The
Audited Accounts of the Company
for the financial year 2024-25,
along with the Directors’ Report
and reports of Auditors have been

circulated.

Financial Performance

In 2024-25, HSRC Infra Services Limited increased its
Total Income from Rs. 3644.81 Lakhs in FY 2023-24 to Rs.
5492.34 Lakhs in FY 2024-25; resulting in an increase of
50.69% over the previous year. The Profit after Tax (PAT)
of the Company increased from Rs. 706.65 Lakhs in FY
2023-24 to Rs. 1183.98 Lakhs in FY 2024-25, resulting in
an increase of 67.55 % over the previous year.

Physical performance

At present, the core activities of HSRC Infra Services
Ltd., includes domestic and international bidding on
behalf RVNL and execution of PMC Contracts. As regards,
bidding activities, your company has made remarkable
achievement by participating in 157 bids valuing Rs.
86,109 Cr. during FY 2024-25 on behalf of RVNL and as a
result thereof, RVNL has bagged 32 Contracts valuing Rs.
23,184.72 Crores. As regards execution of PMC Contracts,
the numbers of Contracts reached have increased from
22 to 36 resulting in increase of Annual Turnover from Rs
3353.59 Lakhs to Rs 5123.52 Lakhs (52.77% increase over
past year). This reflects the exponential growth of the
company in its core area of functioning. | am also happy
to report that Company’s HR has taken commendable
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initiatives in 2024-25 in deputing required manpower to
various PMC sites all over the India.

Corporate Governance

HSRC Infra Services Limited ensures responsible
decision-making through a robust system of checks and
balances, aligned with the expectations of shareholders
and society. The Company is fully compliant with all
applicable legal, statutory, and government guidelines
on Corporate Governance. It remains committed to
transparency, accountability, and ethical conduct. A
detailed Corporate Governance Report and Management
Discussion and Analysis form part of the Annual Report,
outlining governance practices, performance highlights,
and future outlook.

Acknowledgements

In the end, | would like to mention that all the
growth and accomplishments of HSRC Infra Services
Limited are a testament to the tireless efforts of our Core
and Support Teams engaged in Bidding and Project
Management Consultancy (PMC), whose professionalism
and dedication have driven key project outcomes. Their
relentless pursuit of excellence, even in the face of
challenges, has laid a strong foundation for our continued
success and the consistent guidance and support from
our Holding Company, Rail Vikas Nigam Limited (RVNL),
and the Ministry of Railways.

Finally, I, express my sincere thanks to our Holding
Company, Rail Vikas Nigam Limited, Department of Public
Enterprises, Financial Institutions, C&AG's office, bankers
and all other project stakeholders for their continued
trust, collaboration, and support to HSRC Infra Services
Limited. I would also like to place on record my heartfelt
appreciation for all employees of HSRC Infra Services
Limited. Their dedication, integrity, and resilience
remain the cornerstone of our achievements. It is their
unwavering commitment that enables the Company to
strive for excellence and contribute meaningfully to the

nation’s infrastructure development.

(Pradeep Gaur)

Chairman
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Distinguished Shareholders,

The Directors of your Company are privileged to present the 13™ Annual Report of the Company together with the
Audited Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report for the year ended 31t March, 2025.

The Company is a wholly-owned Subsidiary of Rail Vikas Nigam Limited (RVNL), which is a Navratna CPSE under the
Ministry of Railways, Government of India. In the year 2020-2021, the name of the Company was changed from “High
Speed Rail Corporation of India Limited” to “HSRC Infra Services Limited” Your Company is presently engaged in
managing Project Management Consultancy Contracts awarded by RVNL and managing the Bidding activities of RVNL.

The business and financial performance of the Company during the year 2024-25 was as under: -
Business Performance & State of Affairs
Project Consultancy Services Contracts:
HSRC Infra Services Ltd is presently executing the following PMC Contracts awarded by RVNL: -
1. Kolkata-JOKA:
LOA No. RVNL/KOL/M/JOKA/PMC/2/LOA/1710 dated15.12.2020.

Name of the Work PMC Contract for a) Site development of Metro Car
Depot at Joka, b) Setting up of Metro Car Depot at
Joka and c) Construction of Metro viaduct & stations
from Majerhat to Mominpur in connection with Joka-
Esplanade Metro Railway Project in Kolkata West

Bengal.
Date of Completion inclusive 6-month DLP 31-12-2024
CA Value Rs. 19.56 Cr
2.  Jhansi:
LOA No. RVNL/M/CNB/JHS/PMC/LOA/01dated 05.11.2020.
Name of the Work PMC Contract for “Construction of PEB sheds

structures buildings boundary wall, water supply
arrangement drainage, sewerage, road works, track
works, power supply and general electrical works,
telecommunication works and supply, installation and
commissioning of machinery and plant in connection
with setting up of Rail Coach Naveenikaran Karkhana
at Jhansi, Uttar Pradesh(India).

Date of Completion inclusive 6 month DLP 31.12.2026

CA Value Rs. 10.73 Cr.
3. Waltair:
LOA No. RVNL/CPM/II/WAT/TIG-VZM/3 Line/PKG5-B/PMC
dated 23.12.2020.
Name of the Work: PMC Contract for “Construction of Roadbed, Minor

bridges, Major bridges and ROBs/RUBs, S&T, OHE
and general electrification works for 3 line of track
between Gotlam (Incl) (KM 459.540)-Vizianagaram
(Inc) (KM 818.65 on HWH-VSKP Main line) for a length
of 6 KM and Construction of New Single line BG track,
Bye Pass line between Gotlam and Nellimarla (8.035
km) on HWH-VSKP main line in Waltair Division of East
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Coast Railway, Andhra Pradesh State, India." Package
5B

Date of Completion inclusive 6-month DLP 31.12.2025

CA Value Rs.9.55 Cr

4. Kolkata-AVNS:

LOA No. RVNL/KOL/METRO/NEW GARIA- AIRPORT/PMC/
LOA/1414 dated 06.11.2021.

Name of the Work PMC Contract for “A.PACKAGE-1(BLT):"Construction of

Double Line Ballast less Track (BLT) for elevated viaduct
portion between Nicco Park having Ch.(13841.585
m) to Titumir Ch.(25891.527) including points and
crossings, etc. in connection with construction of
metro railway corridor from new Garia to Airport
Corridor, in the city of Kolkata” and for B.PACKAGE-2
(ANV-3/1): “Construction of viaduct including related
works for 2.025 km length from chainage 15442.610
to chainage 17027.740 between WBSETCL substation
Salt Lake (P429) to Mahisbathan Bridge (CP-481)
(near NKDA office),P-575 to P-579 & P-650 to CPP-667
excluding station areas in New Garia-Airport corridor
of Kolkata Metro railway line package-ANV-3/1"

Date of Completion inclusive 6-month DLP 31/12/25.

CA Value: Rs.9.10 Crores
5. ADI/Dhasa-Jetalsar:
LOA No. RVNL/ADI/RE/DAS-JLR/HSRC/PMC/LOA dated
01.08.2022
Name of the Work PMC Contract for “Design, Supply, Erection, Testing

& Commissioning of 25KV,50 Hz, Single Phase,
Conventional Traction overHead Equipment, Switching
Stations and other associated works, associated signal
&Telecommunication work, civil Engineering work
i.e., Staff Quarters, TW. Sidings, Service buildings
and electrical general services, works for Railway
Electrification between stations Dhasa (Excl.) - Jetalsar
(Incl.) (104.44 RKM/118.09 TKM) in Bhavnagar Division
of Western Railway in the state of Gujarat, India".

Date of Completion inclusive 6-month DLP 01-10-2025

CA Value Rs.7.35 Cr
6. Indore-Budni New Line:
LOA No. INDB-BNI/PMC/HSRC Crores dated 30.08.2022
Name of the Work PMC Contract for “Construction of Tunnel, Viaduct,

ROBs/RUBs and Waterways in connection with
Construction of electrified new BG railway line
between Mangliya, Gaon(Indore) is Budni Station (198
KMs) of West Central Railway and Western Railway in
Madhya Pradesh State, India”.
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Date of Completion inclusive 6-month DLP 29.08.2027

CA Value Rs.55.12 Cr
7. Kolkata (HSRC-Kol-3):
LOA No. RVNL/KOL/Metro/NGA/CPM/KOL-1/PMC/980 dated
27.08.2022
Name of the Work PMC Contract for “Name of Work: PMC for package-

1(ANS-1), package-2(ANV-1), Package-2(ANV-1),
package-3(ANV-2), package-4(ANS- 2), package-
5(BLT) of metro rail Kolkata Under CPM-I.

Date of Completion inclusive 6-month DLP 31.12.2025

CA Value Rs.4.67 Cr
8. Vadodara:
LOA No. RVNL/BRC/PMC/DB dated 13.10.2022
Name of the Work PMC Contract for “Construction of PEB Sheds,

structures, buildings, overhead tank with water supply
arrangement, drainage, road, track works, signaling
& telecommunication power supply arrangement,
OHE, general electrical works and supply, erection &
commissioning of machinery & plant in connection
with setting up of POH workshop for electric
locomotives at Dabhoi, Vadodara, Gujarat (India)".

Date of Completion inclusive 6-month DLP 31.12.2025

CA Value Rs.2.82 Cr

9. Lucknow RE:
LOA No. RVNL/LKO/RE/JNH-PFM/PMC dated 05.01.2023
Name of the Work PMC Contract for “Design, Supply, Erection, Testing,

Commissioning of 2X25 kV AC OHE and PSI Works
between Phaphamau (Excl.)- Janghai (Excl.) section
on Lucknow Division of Northern Railway for UP
gradation of Electric Traction System in Connection
with Doubling of Track between Phaphamau (Excl.)-
Janghai (Excl.) section on Lucknow Division of
Northern Railway in the state of Uttar Pradesh India.
(RKM 47/TKM 125).

Date of Completion inclusive 6-month DLP 04.07.2025

CA Value: Rs.3.87 Cr
10. GM/Mech/SCR:
LOA No.: RVNL/M/KZJ/PMC/1/ dated 04.01.2023
Name of the Work: PMC Contract for “Construction of setting up of

Wagon Repair Workshop at Kazipet, Telangana
through Engineering, Procurement and Construction
(EPC) Contract”

Date of Completion inclusive 6-month DLP 03.07.2025
CA Value: Rs.8.15 Cr

LECEEEEECEECEEEEE R EEEECEEER R E TR TR eEeE = LT



P

- HSRC =2 HSRC INFRA SERVICES LIMITED

11. LKO/S&T:
LOA No. GM/S&T/RVNL/JNH-PFM/PMC dated 23.01.2023

Name of the Work PMC Contract for “Provision of S&T system supply,
Installation, Testing & Commissioning from JNH(Excl.)-
PFM(Excl.) (46.79km) in connection with doubling
with Electrification of JNH-PFM sections, NR Lucknow
Division, Uttar Pradesh, India.

Date of Completion inclusive 6-month DLP 22.07.2025

CA Value Rs.2.28 Cr

12. Ahmedabad (PNU-SIOB):
LOA No. RVNL/RE/ADI/HSRC/PNU-SIOB dated 19.04.2023
Name of the Work PMC Contract for “Design, Supply, Erection, Testing

& Commissioning of 25 KV, AC, 50 HZ, Single Phase,
Traction High Rise Over Head Equipment, Traction
Sub Stations, Switching Stations, and other associated
works, Civil engineering works i.e. Service works
and Signal & Telecommunication works for Railway
Electrification of PNU (excl.)-SIOB Double Line Section
of Ahmedabad Division of Western Railway in the

Guijarat state of Gujrat.
Date of Completion inclusive 6-month DLP 18.04.2024
CA Value Rs.1.43 Cr
13. LKO (SG-MALA-PLT):
LOA No. GM/S&T/RVNL/JNH-PFM/PMC dated 13.04.2023
Name of the Work Project Management Consultancy for “Provision of S&T

system supply, Installation, Testing & Commissioning
from Shahgarh-Mala -Pilibhit in connection with
Gauge Conversion work of SG-Mala-PBE sections, NER
Lucknow Division, Uttar Pradesh, India.

Date of Completion inclusive 6-month DLP 04.12.2025

CA Value Rs. 1.66 Cr
14. RDSS (MP):
LOA No.: RVNL/B/E/RDSS/PMC/Part-1 (Loose)/NoA dated 27-
04-2023
Name of the Work: Project Management Consultancy for “Supply,

Installation, Testing and Commissioning of 33/11KV
line associated works such as 33/11KV Line Bifurcation,
33/11KV Line Interconnection and 33/11KV Line
Conductor Augmentation, additional 11KV bay
at 33KV sub-station augmentation of distribution
transformer sub-stations with associate 11KV new
lines, LT line on AB cable, conversion of bare LT line
on AB Cable, augmentation on LT AB cable, 11KV line
crossing on agriculture and non-agriculture feeders,
other associated works and supporting works such as
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DP’s, TP's and crossing etc. under Revamped-Reforms-
Based and Result-Linked Distribution Sector Scheme
(RDSS) of Distribution Company (DISCOM), state of
Madhya Pradesh, India”

Date of Completion inclusive 6-month DLP 26.04.2026

CA Value Rs.1.58 Cr
15. Ahmedabad-Surat Metro:
LOA No. RVNL/RE/ADI/HSRC/METRO dated 08.05.2023
Name of the Work Project Management Consultancy to HSRC Infra

Services Ltd. on nomination basis for“Supply, erection,
testing and commissioning of power supply receiving
& distribution system, 750 v dc third rail traction
electrification and Scada system for Ahmedabad
metro rail project phase-ii & supply, erection, testing
and commissioning of power supply receiving
& distribution system, 750 v dc third rail traction
electrification and Scada system for Ahmedabad
metro rail project Phase-I.

Date of Completion inclusive 6-month DLP 07/05/2027

CA Value Rs.12.98 Cr
16. SIPCOT (Chennai):
LOA No.: RVNL/CPM/MAS/CMRL/HSRC/LOA/001 dated 24-05-
2023
Name of the Work: Project Management Consultancy contract for the

Construction of Elevated Viaduct (Approximate
Length of 10 km), Nine (9) Elevated Metro Stations
at Sholinganallur Lake-l, Sholinganallur Lake- I,
Semmeancheri-l, Semmeancheri-ll  Gandhinagar
Navalur, Siruseri, Siruseri Sipcot-1, Siruseri Sipcot-2
and Stabling Viaduct at SIPCOT.

Date of Completion: 31.12.2024
CA Value: Rs.12.00 Lakh
17. Mumbai Metro:
LOA No. RVNL/Mumbai/Metro Line 2B/LOA dated 06-07-2023
Name of the Work PMC Contract for “Design Manufacturing, Supply,

Installation, Testing and Commissioning of Nos. 110KV
Receiving Substation including 110 KV, 33KV & 25 KV
Cabling work, complete 25 KV overhead catenary
system along with switching station, 33KV Auxiliary
Power distribution system including 33/0.415 KV
Auxiliary Sub-station (ASS) and Complete SCADA
system for main line & Depot of Mumbai Metro Line
2B of MMRDA.

Date of Completion inclusive 6-month DLP 05.07.2024
CA Value Rs.7.04 Cr
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18. Indore Metro New:
LOA No. RVNL/Indore/HSRC/PMC/LOA/001 dated 14-07-2023

Name of the Work PMC Contract for “Project management consultancy
contract top HSRC Infra Services Ltd. on nomination
basis for the works being managed by RVNL Indore
PIU.

Date of Completion inclusive 6-month DLP 30-06-2025

CA Value Rs.1.82 Cr.

19. CPM/RE/ADI:
LOA No. RVNL/RE/ADI/PMC/SBI-BTD/LOA dated 24.08.2023
Name of the Work Project management consultancy contract top HSRC

Infra Services Ltd. on nomination basis for “Design,
Supply, Erection, Testing, & Commissioning of 2x25
KV, 50 Hz, Single Phase, Traction Conventional and
High Rise over Head Equipment, Traction Sub Stations,
Switching Stations, SCADA and other associated works,
Civil Engineering work i.e., Service buildings, quarters.
Tower Car sidings, Sheds and electrical general services
works for Railway Electrification of Sabarmati (Excl.)-
Botad (Incl.) single line section (165RKM/189TKM) of
Bhavnagar Division of Western Railway in the state of
Guijarat, India.

Date of Completion inclusive 6-month DLP 28.08.2025

CA Value Rs.8.33 Cr.
20. CPM /KOTA:
LOA No. CPM-KOTA-II/Bina-Kota Doubling/HSRC/970

Dated:06.01.2024

Name of the Work: Project Management Consultancy for Construction of
Roadbed, Major & Minor Bridges, Track Linking, S&T,
OHE, Traction Sub-Station & General Electrical Works
in ¢/w doubling between BINA-SHDR & MDVk-MAKR
double & 3rd Line Bhopal Divisions of West Central
Railway in the state of Madhya Pradesh.

Date of Completion inclusive 6-month DLP 30.06.2025

CA Value Rs.1.50 Cr.
21. CPM/RE/NGP:
LOA No. CPM/RE/RVNL/NGP/HSRC/DRZ-RWGHT dated:
08.01.2024
Name of the Work Project Management Consultancy Contract to

HSRC Infra Services Ltd. On nomination basis for
“Design, Supply, Erection, Testing & Commissioning
of 1X25 KV, 50 Hz, Single Phase, Traction over-Head
Equipment works between section Dallirajhara (Excl.)-
BhanupratappurSp (Excl.) 27.850 RKM/30.580 TKM and
Design, Supply, Erection, Testing & Commissioning
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of 2X25 KV, 50 Hz, Single Phase, Traction Over-Head
Equipment, Switching stations, SCADA, General
Electrical Services Works along with signaling &
Telecommunication work, Civil Engineering work
and other associated works between section
Bhanupratappur SP(Incl.)-ROW(Incl.) 67.15 RKM/84.82
TKM” of Raipur in South East Central Railway,
Chhattisgarh, India.”

Date of Completion inclusive 6-month DLP 07.01.2026

CA Value Rs.2.24 Cr.
22. CPM/LKO:
LOA No. RVNL/LKO/JNH-PFM/PMC/Civil/2024/05A, dated:
19.01.2024.
Name of the Work: Project Management Consultancy for “Construction

of Roadbed, Major Bridges, Platform, Buildings,
Swithyards, FOB etc. & Electrical General works along
with track linking works (Excluding supply of Rails PSC
Line Sleepers) etc. Total 46.79 Kms. In connection with
doubling of Janghai-Phaphamau section on Lucknow
Division of Northern Railway in the state of Uttar

Pradesh.
Date of Completion inclusive 6-month DLP 07.01.2026
CA Value: Rs.2.98 Cr.
23. CPM/Raipur:
LOA No. CPM/RE/RVNL/NGP/HSRC/DRZ-RWGHT, dated:
08.01.2024.
Name of the Work: Project Management Consultancy Contract to HSRC

Infra Services Ltd. On nomination basis for “Design,
Supply,Erection, Testing&Commissioningof1X25KV,50
Hz, Single Phase, Traction over-Head Equipment works
between section Dallirajhara (Excl.)-Bhanupratappur
Sp(Excl.) 27.850 RKM/30.580 TKM and Design, Supply,
Erection, Testing & Commissioning of 2X25 KV, 50
Hz, Single Phase, Traction Over-Head Equipment,
Switching stations, SCADA, General Electrical Services
Works along with signaling & Telecommunication
work, Civil Engineering work and other associated
works between section Bhanupratappur SP(Incl.)-
ROW(Incl.) 67.15 RKM/84.82 TKM” of Raipur in South
East Central Railway, Chhattisgarh, India.”

Date of Completion inclusive 6-month DLP 07.01.2026

CA Value: Rs.2.24 Cr.
24, CPM/Waltair (Sambalpur):
LOA No. RVNL/WAT/TIG-VZM/3rd Line/PKG-3,4&5A/LJR-JMPT/

PMC/HSRC, dated: 29.01.2024.

Name of the Work: Project Management Consultancy” Construction
of Road bed, Bridges ,Supply of ballast, Installation
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of track (excluding supply of rails, BG Main line
sleepers),Electrical (Railway Electrification and General
electrification), Signaling and Telecommunications
works in Sambalpur & Waltair Divisons of East Coast
Railway, Odisha, India for Package-3 “ between
Lanjigarh road (KM 250.4) (ex)- Bissamcuttack {KM
304.80} {ex}, Package-4 “between Bissamcuttack {KM
304.80} {in}- Rayagada {KM 343.90} {in} and Package-
5A "between Rayagada {Excl} {KM 343.90} - Jimidipeta
{(excl} (KM 356.518} Sambalpur/Waltair Division of East
Coast Railway, Odisha, India”’

Date of Completion inclusive 6-month DLP 11.03.2026
25. CPM/Bhopal (Bina-Kota):

LOA No. CPM-BPL/Bina-kota doubling/HSRC/11132 dated:
18.03.2024.
Name of the Work: Project Management Consultancy Contract for

Construction of Roadbed, Major & Minor Bridges, Track
Linking, S&T, Traction Sub-Station & General Electrical
works in c/w doubling between Kota —-Ruthiyai & Guna-
Pilighat on Kota and Bhopal Divisions of West Central
Railway in the state of Rajasthan and Madhya Pradesh.”

Date of Completion inclusive 6-month DLP 30.06.2025

CA Value: Rs.1.08 Cr.
26. CPM/Pune Metro:
LOA No. RVNL/Pune-Metro/PCMC-Nigadi/PMC/HSRC/01,

dated: 15.05.2024.

Name of the Work: Project Management Consultancy Project
Management Consultancy for contract to HSRC Infra
Services Ltd on nomination basis for the works being
managed by RVNL Pune PIU in connection with
execution of “Design and Construction of Elevated
Viaduct of length 4.519 Km from CH: - (1079.899m
to CH; (-)5599.28m between PCMC and NIGDI (Bhakti
Shakti) on the North-South Corridor of Pune Metro Rail
Project-Reach1-Extension”

Date of Completion inclusive 6-month DLP 14.05.2025

CA Value: Rs.1.10 Cr.

27. CPM/Raipur/Civil:
LOA No. RVNL/CPM-R/DRZ-ROW/HSRC/75, dated: 31.05.2024.
Name of the Work: Project Management Consultancy Contract for

“Construction of Roadbed, Major & Minor Bridges,
Track Linking Outdoor Signaling and Electrical
(General) work in Connection with New Rail Link
between Dallirajhara and Rowghat (95 Km) in Raipur
Division of South East Central Railway in the state of
Chhattisgarh, India.”
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Date of Completion inclusive 6-month DLP 30.05.2026

CA Value: Rs.4.68 Cr.
28. CPM/ADI/Civil/BD:
LOA No. RVNL/ADI/BD/PROJECTS dated 19.06.2024.
Name of the Work: Project Management Consultancy contract to HSRC

Infra Services Ltd. on nomination basis has been
accepted by Competent Authority of RVNL for “BD
contracts have been awarded to RVNL namely: I.
Construction of Bhesan depot cum workshop which
includes DCC, BCC and Associated E&M Works under
corridor - C2, Bhesan to Saroli, for Surat metro rail
projectphasel,DC2(W1).1l. Design, Supply, Installation,
Testing and Commissioning of Ballastless Track from
Sarthana to Dream City in Elevated and Underground
Sections Including Connecting Lines to Depot along
with Ballasted/Ballastless/Embedded Standard Gauge
Track for Corridor - |, Surat Metro Rail Project. Phase |
(W2). lll. Up gradation to six line with paved shoulder
of Sarkhej - Shangodar section of NH-8A (New NH-
47) from Km. 11/950 to km. 16/0000 for Ahmedabad-
Bagodara-Raikot road on EPC mode in state of
Gujarat (Package-7) (W3). IV. Planning, Design and
Construction of Main Canal and Structures including
associated distribution system to provide Irrigation
facility to 41903 ha. area through Piped Irrigation
network for Upper High Level Canal of Mahi Bajaj Sagar
Project, Bansrvara (Raj) on Engineering, Procurement
and Construction (E.P.C.) single Responsibility turnkel
basis. including 10 years O&M (W4). V. Other works in
pipeline like LPC - Rail loading Gantrl’at Logistic park -
1 Dahei. Bharuch (W5). VL. (i) All civil engineering works
(Earthwork, Blanketing, Retaining Wall/Boundary Wall/
Side Drain. Major Bridges, Minor Bridges and LHS/
RUB, LCs, Construction of Station Buildings. Platform,
Subways coveroverPlatforms, Staff Quarters, Passenger
Amenities. Circulating Area, approach roads, Offices,
Service Buildings, watering, Sanitation, protection
works etc. and Supply of 50 mm Machine Crushed
Stone Ballast. (complete track works including linking
of Track works in connection with Gauge Conversion
work between Nadiad - Petlad (37.26 kms) of Vadodara
Division on Western Railway and; (ii) Petlad - Bhadran
Gauge Conversion (22.50 km) work of All civil
engineering works (Earthwork, Blanketing, Retaining
Wall/Boundary Wall/Side Drain, Major Bridges, Minor
Bridges and LHS/RUB, LCs, Construction of Station
Buildings, Platform, Subways cover over Platforms,
Staff Quarters, Passenger Amenities, Circulating Area,
approach roads, Offices, Service Buildings, watering,
Sanitation, protection works etc. and Supply of 50 mm
Machine Crushed Stone Ballast. Complete track works
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including linking of Track works in connection with
Gauge Conversion work between Petlad - Bhadran
(22.50 kms) of Vadodara Division on Western Railway

(We)."
Date of Completion inclusive 6-month DLP 17.07.2026
CA Value: Rs.4.92 Cr.
29. CPM/RE-ADI/RDSS/Vadodra:
LOA No. RVNL/RE/ADI/RDSS Vadodara/PMC/01/2023/LOA,
dated: 12.08.2024.
Name of the Work: “Project Management Consultancy contract to HSRC

Infra Services Ltd. on nomination basis for“Full Turnkey
Based Contract (Design, Supply, Installation, Testing
and Commissioning) for Development of Distribution
Infrastructure Works for Loss Reduction at VADODARA
District under Revamped Reforms Based and Result-
Linked Distribution Sector Scheme as per specification,
terms and condition of tender Madhya Gujarat VIJ
Company Ltd. (MGVCL) in the state of Gujarat, India.”

Date of Completion inclusive 6-month DLP 12.06.2026

CA Value: Rs.1.67 Cr.
30. CPM/ADI/RDSS/Dahod:
LOA No. RVNL/RE/ADI/RDSS Dahod/PMC/01/2023/LOA, dated:
12.08.2024.
Name of the Work: “Project Management Consultancy contract to HSRC

Infra Services Ltd. on nomination basis for Full Turnkey
Based Contract (Design, Supply, Installation, Testing
and Commissioning) for Development of Distribution
Infrastructure Works for Loss Reduction at Dahod
District under Revamped Reforms Based and Result-
Linked Distribution Sector Scheme as per specification,
terms and condition of tender Madhya Gujarat VIJ
Company Ltd. (MGVCL) in the state of Gujarat, India.”

Date of Completion inclusive 6-month DLP 12.06.2026

CA Value: Rs.1.49 Cr.

31. CPM/RE/BD/Works/Kol:
LOA No. RVNL/KOL/EL/HSRC/800/960, dated: 12.09.2024.
Name of the Work: Araria—Galgalia: “Engineering, Procurement,

Construction of Design, Supply, Erection, Testing
& Commissioning of 25 kV, 50Hz, Single Phase,
AC, Electrification OHE and TSS works of Araria—
Thakurganj New Line Section in connection with
new line project of Araria—Galgalia of N.F. Railway,
including associated works and supply, erection,
modification, testing and commissioning of SCADA
forthe section. (106.958 RKM/119.27 TKM). (in EPC
mode)”
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¥ RKSN-NYG OHE: “Design, Supply, Erection, Testing
and commissioning for upgradation of Electric traction
system from 1 x 25 KV to 2 x 25 KV traction system
for Rajkharsawan — Nayagarh — Bolani section of
Chakradharpur division of south Eastern Railway to
meet 3000MT loading target”.

* RKSN-NYG PSI: “Design, Supply, Erection, Testing
and commissioning of 132 KV traction substation,
sectioning post (SPs) and sub sectioning post (SSPs) in
2x25KV system on Rajkhawan — Nayagarh — Bolani
section of Chakradharpur division of south Eastern
Railway to meet 3000MT loading target on EPC mode”.

* KGP-BHC OHE: “Design, Supply, Erection, Testing and
commissioning for upgradation of Electric traction
system from 1 x 25 KV to 2 x 25 KV traction system
for Kharagpur (Excl) — Bhadrak (Excl.) Section of
Kharagpur Division of south Eastern Railway to meet
3000 MT loading target..."

Date of Completion inclusive 6-month DLP 12.09.2026

CA Value: Rs.3.87 Cr.
32. GM/Elecl/CC:
LOA No. No.RVNL/Elect/SLT/Works/GSS Rajasthan/2024/PMC,

dated: 13.11.2024.

Name of the Work: Project Management Consultancy for “Construction
of 8nos. 132Kv GSS & associated TR line in Rajasthan”

Date of Completion inclusive 6-month DLP 12.05.2026

CA Value: Rs. 20.88 Lakhs.
33. CPM-2/Kolkata(HSRC-5):
LOA No. RVNL/KOL/METRO/JOKA/PMC/LOA/454,dated:
21.11.2024.
Name of the Work: Project Management Consultancy Contract to HSRC

Infra Services Ltd. On nomination basis for “Design,
Supply,Erection,Testing &Commissioningof 1X25KV,50
Hz, Single Phase, Traction over-Head Equipment works
between section Dallirajhara (Excl.)-Bhanupratappur
Sp(Excl.) 27.850 RKM/30.580 TKM and Design, Supply,
Erection, Testing & Commissioning of 2X25 KV, 50
Hz, Single Phase, Traction Over-Head Equipment,
Switching stations, SCADA, General Electrical Services
Works along with signaling & Telecommunication
work, Civil Engineering work and other associated
works between section Bhanupratappur SP(Incl.)-
ROW(Incl.) 67.15 RKM/84.82 TKM” of Raipur in South
East Central Railway, Chhattisgarh, India.”

Date of Completion inclusive 6-month DLP: 20.05.2027
CA Value: Rs.14.87 Cr.
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34. GGM/Elec/Kol/Metro(HSRC-Kol-6):

LOA No. RVNL/KOL/EL/METRO/065/HSRC/1440, dated:
31.12.2024.
Name of the Work: Project Management Consultancy contract to HSRC

Infra Services Itd. on nomination basis for -"Electrical
works consisting of E&M Works ,Escalators & Lifts and
System works (Substations and Third Rail System) for
Joka-Majerhat-Mominpur and Jai Hind (Airport) - Kavi
Subhash (New Garia) Corridors of Metro Railway in
Kolkata, West Bengal, India” including engagement of
existing manpower against foreclose PMC contract of
M/S Voyants Solutions Private Limited.”

Date of Completion inclusive 6-month DLP 30.06.2027

CA Value: Rs.23.14 Cr.

35. CPM/Bhopal (IND-Budni-1A):
LOA No. No.3 INDB-BNI/PMC/HSRC/Corres, dated: 08.01.2025.
Name of the Work: Project Management Consultancy for Package-1A-

Construction of Roadbed, Minor Bridges, Buildings,
Installation of Track (Excluding Supply of Rails, Sleeper
& Thick Web Switches) and other Civil Engineering
and General Electrical Works in connection with NEW
BG Railway Line Between Mangliyagaon-Kheri (incl)
Stations (chainages 0.000-57.400 KM) in Indore -Budni
Section of Ratlam and Bhopal divisions of Western
Railway and West Central Railway Respectively in
Madhya Pradesh State, India"(i.e. Civil, Elec & S&T

Works)”
Date of Completion inclusive 6-month DLP 08.07.2029
CA Value: Rs.22.72 Cr.
36. CPM/Bhopal (IND-Budni-1B):
LOA No. No.3 INDB-BNI/PMC/HSRC/Corres, dated: 21.03.2025.
Name of the Work: Project Management Consultancy Contract to HSRC

Infra Services Ltd. On nomination basis for Package-
1B- Contraction of roadbed, Minor bridges, Buildings,
Installation of track (Excluding Supply of Rails, Sleeper
& Thick web Switches) and other Civil Engineering
and General Electrical Works in connection with new
BG Railway line Between Kheri (Excl)- Pipaliya Nankar
Station (Chainages 57.400 - 129.000 Km) in Indore-
BNI section of Bhopal Division West Central Railway
in Madhya Pradesh State, India (i.e. Civil, Elect & S&T
works)”

Date of Completion inclusive 6-month DLP 21.09.2029
CA Value: Rs.22.72 Cr.
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37. GGM/Ranchi-Dhanbad

LOA No. GGM/EL/RVNL/RNC/GHD-MHDA/HSRC/32, dated:
25.03.2025.
Name of the Work: Project Management Consultancy contract to HSRC

Infra Services Ltd. has been accepted by competent
authority of RVNL for the BD work of “Design,Supply,
Erection,Testing and Commissioning of 2X25KV feeder
line along the track with 25KV OHE modification works
to meet 3000MT loading target for UP & DN line of
Garwa Road- Mahadiya Section of Dhanbad Division
under E.C. Railway (Total 229/458 RKM/TKM)."

Date of Completion inclusive 6-month DLP 25.03.2027

CA Value: Rs. 1.24 Cr.
38. GGM/BharatNet
LOA No. No.RVNL/CO/S&T/Bharatnet/HR/HSRC/PMC/02, dated:
10.03.2025.
Name of the Work: Project Management Consultancy contract to HSRC

Infra Services Ltd in connection with the work of
“Development (Creation,upgradation and Operation
& Maintenance) of Middle Mile Network of Bharatnet
on Design Build Operate and Maintain (DBOM) Model
(Package:3, UP East and Packages:6, UP West)”

Date of Completion inclusive 6-month DLP 10.03.2026

CA Value: Rs.13.17 Cr.
39. GGM/Mech-Kolkata
LOA No. RVNL/KOL/SMPK/SPUR/PHALTA/PMC/1/LOA/1708,

dated: 15.03.2025.

Name of the Work: Project Management consultancy for the work of
“Bank protection work by construction of series of
short Spurs (55 Nos) at Upstream & Downstream of
Phalta Jetty along left bank of River Hooghly at Phalta
of Shyama Prasad Mookerjee Port, Kolkata in south 24,
Parganas, West Bengal”

Date of Completion inclusive 6-month DLP 14.02.2026
CA Value: Rs. 1.21 Cr.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The significant indicators of financial performance of the Company for the financial year 2024-25 are given below:
Amount (Rs. in Lakhs)

S.No Particulars FY 2024-25 FY 2023-24
1 Authorized Share Capital 5000 5000
2. Subscribed & Paid-up share Capital 4500 4500
3. Total Income 5492.34 3644.81
4, Revenue from operation 5123.52 3353.59
5. Profit before Tax 1587.58 945.76
6. Profit after Tax 1183.98 706.65
7. Net Worth 6888.33 5706.03
8. Earnings Per Share

a). Basic 2.63 1.57

b). Diluted 2.63 1.57

During the Financial year 2024-25, Paid-up Share Capital of the Company was Rs.4500 Lakhs. The Current Liabilities for
the F.Y. 2024-25 were Rs. 498.99 Lakhs, which shows an increase of Rs. 203.82 Lakhs over the previous year. The current
assets for the F.Y. 2024-25 were Rs. 7366.54 Lakhs which shows an increase of Rs. 1389.29 Lakhs over the previous year.

During the year, Revenue from operations was Rs. 5123.52 Lakhs; the otherincome has increased to Rs. 368.82 Lakhs
from Rs. 291.22 Lakhs the previous year.
Capital Structure

As on 31.03.2025, the authorized share capital of the Company was Rs. 5000 Lakhs and the paid-up share capital of the
Company was Rs. 4500 Lakhs during the financial year. There has been no Change in the Capital Structure during the
year under review.

Rail Vikas Nigam Limited, Holding Company holds the entire share capital of the Company.

As per Rule 9A of the Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Amendment Rules, 2019 dated 22" January,
2019, the Company being a wholly owned subsidiary (WoS) is not required to get its securities in dematerialized form.

Dividend

The Board recommended a dividend of Rs. 0.80 per equity share for the FY 2024-25 subject to the approval of
shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company. Total dividend for the Financial Year 2024-25 is
Rs. 360 Lakhs.

Fixed Deposits

The Company has not accepted any fixed deposits from public during the year under review.

Details of Significant and Material Orders passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals impacting the going
concern status and Company’s Operations in future.

No Significant and Material Orders passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals impacting the going concern status
and Company'’s Operations in future during the year.

Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earning and Outgo

The provisions of conservation of energy, technology absorption is not applicable to the Company. During the year
under review, there is no foreign exchange earnings, but there is foreign exchange outgo on Travel and Consultancy
related to bidding in foreign countries, amounting Rs. 21.53 lakhs.

Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associate Companies, names of companies which have become or ceased
to be its Subsidiaries, joint ventures, or associate companies during the year & highlights of performance of
subsidiaries, associates and joint venture companies and their contribution to the overall performance of the
company during the period under report

There are no Subsidiary/ Joint Venture/Associate Companies within the meaning of Section 2(87) and Section 2(6) of
the Companies Act, 2013.
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Change in the Nature of Business and Material Changes and Commitments affecting Financial Position between
the end of the Financial Year and Date of Report

There are no Changes in the Nature of Business and Material changes and commitments affecting Financial Position
between the end of the Financial Year and Date of Report.

Statement on Compliance of Applicable Secretarial Standards

During the year, Company has complied with the applicable provisions of the Secretarial Standards (SS-1 & SS-2) as
issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI) to the extent possible.

Contracts and Arrangements with Related Parties

Most of the Contracts/Arrangements/Transactions entered by the Company during the financial year with Related
Parties were in the ordinary course of business and on Arm’s Length Basis. Information on the Transactions with Related
parties pursuant to section 134(3)(h) of the Companies Act,2013 read with Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014 are given in Annexure-l in Form AOC-2 and the same forms part of this Report.

Particulars of Loans, Investment and Guarantee

During the period under review, the Company has not advanced any loans/ given guarantees/ made investments
under section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Constitution of Internal Complaints Committee under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 & Disclosure Under Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013

The company has complied with provisions relating to the constitution of Internal Complaints Committee under the
Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 & Disclosure Under Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

Compliance with the provisions of Maternity Benefit Act, 1961
During the year 2024-25, your Company has complied with all the provisions of Maternity Benefit Act, 1961.

Statement on declaration given by Independent Directors under sub-section (6) of section 149 of the Companies
Act,2013

Company is not required to appoint Independent Directors as per section 149(4) of the Companies Act, 2013.

Policy developed and implemented by the company on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) initiatives taken
during the year

Every company having net worth of Rs. 500 crore or more or turnover of Rs.1000 crore or more or a net profit of
Rs. 5 crore or more during the immediately preceding financial year is required to spend in every financial year, at least
2% of average net profits of the company made during the immediately three preceding financial years.

Since, the net profit (PAT) of the Company for the financial year ended 315t March, 2024 was Rs. 7.07 crore which exceeds
the above-mentioned threshold limit, therefore, the provision of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) under Section
135 of the Companies Act, 2013 was applicable to the Company for the financial year 2024-25.

In compliance with the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, a Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) committee is required when a company’s CSR
expenditure exceeds 50 lakh. If the expenditure is below this threshold, the company is not required to form a CSR
committee, and the Board of Directors will handle the CSR functions. Since the CSR expenditure does not exceed the
prescribed limit, hence the company is not required to constitute the CSR Committee.

Your Company is committed to compliance with the requirement of all applicable laws, rules, regulations and ensure
transparency while conducting the business in an ethical manner.

During the financial year 2024-25, the CSR amount to be spent during 2024-2025 is Rs.10,92,476.69. Board approved
the CSR budget to be spent during the year 2024-2025 and also directed to enter into a MoU with Rail Vikas Nigam
Limited (its holding Company) for spending the CSR allocated budget for financial year 2024-25 in activities approved
as per schedule VIl of the Companies Act, 2013 and DPE Guidelines.

Board had approved to contribute Rs. 10,92,477/- to M/s. DigiSwasthya Foundation towards CSR expenditure for the
financial year 2024-2025. DigiSwasthya Foundation, established in June 2021, a childhood cancer survivor; which is a
non-profit organization dedicated to making healthcare services accessible and affordable for rural and marginalized
communities across India by leveraging technology. The foundation employs a “Phygital” (physical + digital) model,
combining telemedicine services with physical clinics to bridge the healthcare gap in underserved regions. Through
its telemedicine centres, DigiSwasthya connects patients in remote areas with expert doctors from leading hospitals,
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facilitating timely and accurate diagnoses. Additionally, the organization conducts health awareness campaigns and
camps to educate communities about preventive healthcare and existing government health schemes. Annual Report
on CSR Activities for the FY 2024-25 is annexed at Annexure-II.

Presidential Directive
No Presidential Directive was received during the year.
Cost records

The provisions of sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 was not applicable during period under
review.

Integral Reports

“Management Discussion and Analysis Report” and “Corporate Governance Report” forms an integral part of this
Director’s Report, which are placed at Annexure-Ill & IV.

Board of Directors

The Board of Directors consists of three (3) Part- time Directors nominated by the Holding Company, Rail Vikas Nigam
Limited as on the date of this report are mentioned below: -

Name of Director Designation Date of Joining
1. Mr. Pradeep Gaur 07243986 Director 10.09.2018
2. Mrs. Anupam Ban 07797026 Director 13.02.2023
Mr. Mritunjay Pratap Singh 08165734 Director 07.11.2024

The following Directors or KMP ceased to hold office during the year 2024-25:

S. No. | Name of Director Designation Date of cessation
1. Mr. Vinay Singh 03324677 Director 19.12.2024
2. Mr. Rajesh Prasad 08585975 Director 01.10.2024
3. Mr. Sanjeeb Kumar 03383641 Director 01.06.2025
4. Mr. Mudit Mittal = CFO 07.04.2025

The following Directors or KMP have been appointed during the year 2024-25:

S. No. | Name of Director Designation Da.te of
Appointment

1. Mr. Mritunjay Pratap Singh 08165734 Director 07.11.2024

2. Mr. Chandan Kumar Verma - CFO 07.04.2025

Number of Board Meetings
The Board of Directors met six (6) times during the financial year 2024-25:

m Number of Meetings Date of Meeting

56t Board Meeting

17 May, 2024

57t Board Meeting

18t July, 2024

58t Board Meeting

8t August, 2024

59t Board Meeting

7' November, 2024

60t Board Meeting

27 January, 2025

o v wiN =

61 Board Meeting

14* February, 2025

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors confirms that:

a)
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b) The directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the company for that period;

Q) The directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities;

d) The directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

e) The directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and
that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

Pursuant to section 134 (3) (a) and of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Management and Administration)
Amendment Rules 2021, the annual return in Form No. MGT-7 and as per Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013,
Annual Return will be available on the website of the Company i.e., http://hsrc.in/.

Auditors

The Comptroller and Auditor General of India (C&AG) vide letter No./CA.V/COY/CENTRAL GOVERNMENT, HSRCISL
(0)/1287 dated 21.09.2023 has appointed M/s. Anil K Goyal & Associates as Statutory Auditor of the Company for the
year 2024-25.

Comments of Comptroller & Auditor General of India

The Comptroller & Auditor General of India has undertaken supplementary audit on the accounts of the Company for
the year ended 31tMarch, 2025 under Section 139 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013. Comptroller & Auditor General of
India have decided not to conduct supplementary audit of the financial statement of HSRC Infra Services Limited for
the year ended 31t March, 2025 under section 143(6) (a) of the Act

Explanations or comments by the Board on every qualification, reservation or adverse remark or disclaimer
made by the Auditor

Explanations or replies of the Board on qualifications/reservations/adverse remarks, disclaimers in the Audit Report
issued by the Statutory Auditor of the Company shall also form part of this report.

Details in Respect of Frauds Reported by Auditors under Sub-Section (12) of Section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013

During the year under review, there were no frauds reported by statutory auditors of the Company to the Board
under section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013

Compliance of Companies Act, 2013 & filing of all disclosures in Statutory forms with the Ministry of Corporate
Affairs

During the year under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 & has filed all the
disclosures in statutory forms with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs.

Particulars of Employees

During the year 2024-25 (as on 31.03.2025), the Company has 01 Regular, 01 Deputationist, 25 Contract Engineers, 03
Advisors/Experts and 13 Outsourced Employees.

Besides, the Company also has 517 outsourced Engineers/experts/others hired on need basis for various PMC sites all
over the India.

Secretarial Audit
During the year under review, provisions of Section 204 relating to secretarial audit are not applicable.
Acknowledgements

We record our appreciation and thanks to the Ministry of Railways and Holding Company, RVNL for their continued
support to the Company, and also the employees of the Holding Company for their efforts to take the company forward.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Sd/-

(Pradeep Gaur)
Place: New Delhi Chairman
Date: 02.07.2025 (DIN: 07243986)
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Annexure-|

Form No. AOC-2
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and
Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred
to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions under third
proviso thereto

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis:

HSRC Infra Services Limited has not entered into any contract or arrangement or transaction with its related
parties which is not at arm’s length during financial year 2024-25.

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis:
(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship:
i. Rail Vikas Nigam Limited: Holding Company: PMC Contracts & Bidding
(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions:
i. Project Management Consultancy Contracts &
ii. Business Development
(o) Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions: Ongoing Contracts
(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any:
i. Project Management Consultancy Contracts:

Successful execution of 36 PMC Contracts awarded by RVNL and One PMC Contract awarded by JSW
during 2024-25; Turnover Rs. 5123.52 Lakhs during 2024.25.

ii. Business Development Activities of RVNL:

Participated in 157 bids valuing Rs. 86,109 Cr. during FY 2024-25 on behalf of RVNL and as a result
thereof, RVNL has bagged 32 Contracts valuing Rs. 23,184.72 Crores during 2024-25

(e) Date (s) of approval by the Board, if any: NA

() Amount paid as advances, if any: NIL

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Sd/-
(Pradeep Gaur)

Place: New Delhi Chairman

Date: 02.07.2025 (DIN: 07243986)
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Annexure-Il

ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES FORTHE FINANCIAL YEAR 2024-25

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company:

The Company is committed to compliance with the requirements of all applicable laws, rules, and regulations
and ensures transparency while conducting its business in an ethical manner. The CSR activities are undertaken
in accordance with Schedule VIl of the Companies Act, 2013 and DPE Guidelines. The Company’s CSR budget for
FY 2024-25 was allocated towards healthcare initiatives in collaboration with DigiSwasthya Foundation, aimed at
making healthcare accessible and affordable for rural and marginalized communities.

2. Composition of the CSR Committee:

Since the CSR expenditure of the Company does not exceed Rs. 50 Lakhs, constitution of a CSR Committee is not
mandatory. Accordingly, the CSR functions are directly monitored by the Board of Directors.

3. Web-link of CSR Committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the Board:
The CSR policy of the Company and details of projects are available at the registered office of the Company.

4., Details of Impact Assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of Rule 8(3):
Not applicable.

Details of the amount available for set-off: Not applicable.

Average net profit of the company as per Section 135(5): Rs. 5.46 Crore (approx.).

(a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per Section 135(5): Rs. 10,92,477/-
(b) Surplus arising out of CSR projects of the previous financial years: Nil

(c) Amount required to be set-off for the financial year: Nil

(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year: Rs. 10,92,477/-

8. CSRamount spent or unspent for the financial year:

Name of Item from Schedule | Local area | Location of the | Amount spent .
: : . Date of cessation
Project Vil (Yes/No) project (X in crore)

1. | Contribution Promoting healthcare Yes India (rural & 0.109 Through
to including preventive marginalized Implementing

DigiSwasthya healthcare communities) Agency -
Foundation DigiSwasthya

Foundation

9. Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: Not applicable.
10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset: Not applicable.

11. The entire CSR obligation for the year has been spent. Hence, no shortfall.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Sd/-
(Pradeep Gaur)

Place: New Delhi Chairman

Date: 02.07.2025 (DIN: 07243986)
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Annexure-lll

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

An Overview

The company was incorporated on 25" July, 2012 in the name of High-Speed Rail Corporation of India; as a
wholly owned Subsidiary (WOS) of Rail Vikas Nigam Limited, RVNL is a Navratna CPSE under the Ministry of
Railways, Government of India. Later the name was changed to HSRC Infra Services Limited, under Certificate of
Incorporation issued by ROC Delhi on 09.10.2020.

Mission

HSRCISL is committed to efficient, cost-effective and time-bound delivery of construction and infrastructure
development projects by providing comprehensive solutions from their inception to commissioning, through
adoption of “best-in-the-industry” practices.

Vision
To emerge as a trusted leader in the construction and development of rail, road and other infrastructure projects

in India and abroad and to build a pool of expertise in global construction, maintenance, supervision and
operational practices

Objectives

- To develop specialized human resources for project implementation by skill development training and
developing expertise for specific areas related to Transportation and Civil infrastructure in general and Railway
Infrastructure in particular.

- To expand existing in-house knowledge & expertise base to provide consulting services.

- To expand expertise and knowledge base for optimum utilization of existing assets & resources as well as to
augment capacity in order to meet emerging specialized transportation infrastructure needs.

= To maintain a cost effective organizational set up to gain a competitive edge over potential competitors.
- To undertake the project development and implementation of Transportation and Other Infrastructure Projects.

- To evolve as a Transportation and Other Infrastructure Company committed to sustainable development and
environment friendly execution of Transportation and Other Infrastructure Projects.

- To mobilize financial resources for project implementation as per project schedule.

- To encourage public private participation in Transportation and Other Infrastructure Projects in India and
abroad.

- Thus, to contribute significantly in Transportation and Other Infrastructure so as to minimize General
Transportation & other Costs of the Economy as well as to optimize the Capital and other resources for faster
GDP growth

Strengths

- HSRCISL has developed expertise in execution and implementation all stages of project development - from
concept to commissioning - including feasibility/bankability studies, DPR (detailed project report), financing/
structuring of project specific SPVs, tendering, project supervision, commissioning etc.

- HSRCISL has acquired experience of working with multiple study teams consisting of international experts
involved in conducting Feasibility studies of various High-Speed Rail corridors of Diamond Quadrilateral

- HSRCISL has adequate capability and monitoring mechanism to enter into Private Public Partnership (PPP)
models for implementation and financing of technology driven innovative Transportation & other Infrastructure
projects.

- HSRCISL has adequate the requisite skills and experience to implement projects following the procedure
laid down by ADB/Word Bank/other International bodies including resettlement and rehabilitation of Project
Affected Persons and implementation of socio-economic safeguards for them.

- HSRCISL has a sound and robust financial management system, which allows for effective monitoring and
control of expenditure.
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Weaknesses

- The human resource of HSRCISL is limited and is dependent on the holding company (RVNL) for manpower
support as per project requirements.

= Transportation Infrastructure projects are highly capital intensive with long gestation period. As of now, HSRCISL
doesn’t have the provision to raise private equity. Hence, such projects may be dependent on availability of
suitable financing and/or funding by the holding company.

Opportunities
- Transportation Infrastructure is an emerging domain and position of HSRCISL is unique.

- Transportation & other Infrastructure projects are priority projects for respective Governments and HSRCISL is
an emerging & potential name in this domain.

- After Successful commissioning of PMC Contracts, HSRCISL has gained expertise and capability for Metro & Rail
projects, which will be helpful in capturing new opportunities.

Threats

- The dependency for experienced of technical manpower over RVNL and other Railway bodies may put little
constraints in timely execution of projects.

- Availability of adequate funds is a critical requirement for implementation of any project. As HSRCISL is a growing
entity, the time schedule of projected funds inflow, may deviate a little bit and cause similar deviation in the
project schedule.

- As infrastructure projects involve Land acquisition & other critical issues, any such criticality may affect the
project cost and schedule.

Risks and Concerns

. Transportation Infrastructure projects are always highly capital intensive.
. The implementation of Infrastructure projects is dependent on specific policy directives of the Government of
India.

Internal Control Systems

HSRCISL has a robust and effective Internal Control & monitoring system. HSRCISL has an effective & comprehensive
Internal Control & Monitoring System, which covers each segment of its operations.

Human Resources

The Company has limited need-based personnel on its rolls. At present, the activities of the Company are managed
by present strength with the support of RVNL personnel on need basis. HSRCISL, being a wholly owned subsidiary of
RVNL, is also engaged in Business Development of RVNL.

Financial Performance

During the year, the “Revenue from Operations”is Rs. 5123.52 Lakhs as compared to Rs. 3353.59 Lakhs in the previous
year. “Revenue from Other Sources”is Rs. 368.82 Lakhs as compared to Rs. 291.22 Lakhs in the previous year.
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Annexure-IV

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

1. Company’s Philosophy on Corporate Governance

Initiatives are being taken to implement Corporate Governance principles and measures as contained in the
Guidelines on Corporate Governance for Central Public Sector Enterprises May 2010 issued by the Department
of Public Enterprises.

2. Incorporation

The Company was incorporated on 25% July, 2012 as a wholly owned Subsidiary of RVNL Ltd. with an Authorized
Share Capital of Rs.500 Lakhs and paid-up share capital of Rs.10.74 Lakhs. In FY 2021-22, the authorized share
capital of the Company was increased from Rs. 500 Lakhs to Rs. 5,000 Lakhs with the paid-up share capital of the
Company was increased from Rs.10.74 Lakhs to Rs. 4,500 Lakhs.

Hence, during the year 2024-25, the authorized share capital of the Company is Rs. 5000 Lakhs with the paid-up
share capital of the Company is Rs. 4500 Lakhs.

The Holding Company, RVNL, holds the entire paid-up share capital of the Company.
3. Board of Directors

Present strength of the Board of Directors is three comprising of part-time directors including part-time
chairman-nominated by the holding company.

The details of directors as on the date of this report are given below:

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
(As on the date of this Report)

Total No. of Committee

Directorships/ Membership**
.Category of Chairmanships held held (including HSRCISL)
Directors Whole in Public companies As Memb
. . s Member
UL excluding HSRCISL* As Chairman other than
Chairman
1. Mr. Pradeep Gaur Part -time 1 - -
(DIN:07243986) Chairman [RVNL]
(w.e.f 10.09.2018)
2. Mr. Mritunjay Pratap Singh Part -time 1 - 2
(DIN: 08165734) Director [RVNL]

(w.ef.07.11.2024)

3. Mrs. Anupam Ban Part -time 1 - -
(DIN: 07797026) Director [RVNL]
(w.e.f. 13.02.2023)

* Does not include Directorship in Private Companies, Section 8 Companies and Foreign Companies.

** Does not include Chairmanship / Membership in the Board of Committees other than the Audit Committee and
Shareholders’/Grievance Committees.

Note:
Full names of companies referred:
RVNL- Rail Vikas Nigam Limited
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3.1 Board Meetings, Annual General Meeting, and attendance during the financial year 2023-24.

The Board of Directors met 5 times during the financial year 2024-25 to discuss the activities of the Company.
Details of attendance of the Directors during the year 2024-25 are given below: -

Board Meetings held on-

17.05.2024
18.07.2025
08.08.2024
Name of Directors 07.11.2024 Attendance at AGM
27.01.2025
14.02.2025
At
Held during tenure
tended
Mr. Pradeep Gaur
1. (DIN:07243986) 6 6 ves
Mr. Vinay Singh
2 (DIN: 03324677) 4 4 ves
Mr. Rajesh Prasad
3 (DIN: 08585975) 3 3 ves
Mr. Sanjeeb Kumar
4 (DIN: 03383641) 6 6 ves
Mrs. Anupam Ban
> (DIN: 07797026) 6 6 e
6. Mr. Mritunjay Pratap Singh ) ) NA

(DIN: 08165734)

4., Remuneration of Directors

No sitting fee is paid to the part — time Directors.

5. Code of Conduct

All Directors of the company are whole-time Directors of the holding Company, RVNL. They have been following
the Code of Conduct laid down by RVNL.

6. Committees of the Board of Directors

Audit committee, Remuneration committee, CSR committee etc. will be constituted as and when the need arises.

7. Annual General Meeting

The Company will hold its 13" Annual General meeting in accordance with the provisions of section 96 of the
Companies Act, 2013 & General circular No. 096/2023 dated 25.09.2023 & 09/2024 dated 19.09.2024 read with
General circular No. 20/2020 dated 05.05.2020, General Circular No. 02/2022 dated 05.05.2022 and General
Circular No. 10/2022 dated 28.07.2022 & General Circular No. 09/2023 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs
(MCA).

The details relating to date, time and venue of the last three Annual General Meetings of the Company with
details of Special resolution passed are placed below:

Year Time e Special Resolution
Passed

2023-24 720 30.09.2024 1100 hrs Conference Hall, First Floor, August None
Kranti Bhawan, Bhikaji Cama Place,
R.K. Puram, New Delhi-110066
2022-23 ks 26.09.2023 1130 hrs Conference Hall, First Floor, August None
Kranti Bhawan, Bhikaji Cama Place,
R.K. Puram, New Delhi-110066
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2021-22 10t 28.09.2022 1130 hrs Room No.260, conference Room, None
First Floor, August Kranti Bhawan,
BhikajiCama Place, R.K.Puram, New
Delhi-110066

8. Means of Communication

The Annual Report of the Company including the audited financial statements for the year 2024-25 containing
inter-alia Directors’ Report, Report on Corporate Governance of HSRCISL are available on the website of the
Company www.hsrc.in and at the Registered Office of the company.

Annual General Meeting of the Current Year
Date: 12.08.2025
Time: 17:00 hrs.

Venue: Registered Office of the Company i.e., Conference Hall, First Floor, August Kranti Bhawan, Bhikaji Cama Place,
R.K. Puram, New Delhi-110066

. Category Wise Shareholding Pattern (As on the date of this report)

No. of Shares held in

Category physical form % of Shares Held
(Rs.10/- each)

Promoters

(Rail Vikas Nigam Limited and its six Nominees) 45000000 100%

Total 45000000 100%
. Address for Correspondence:

The address of registered office of the company is:

HSRC Infra Services Limited

(Formerly known as High Speed Rail Corporation of India Limited)
RVNL Corporate Office,

Room No.260,1st Floor, August Kranti Bhawan,

Bhikaji Cama Place, New Delhi - 110066

Contact. No.: 011-26738105

Email: info@hsrc.in

Website: www.hsrc.in
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. ANIL K. GOYAL & ASSOCIATES 204-208, Siddharth Chambers, Near IIT
Chartered Accountants Hauz Khas, New Dethi-110 016, INDIA
Tel.: 91-11-41828993, 41828994

E-mall : anilgoyal@akgasscciates.com
URL : www.akgassociates.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of
HSRC INFRA SERVICES LIMITED

Report on the Audit of Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of HSRC Infra Services Limited (“the
Company”), which comprises the Balance Sheet as at 31% March, 2025, the Statement of Profit
and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and
the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information
{hereinafter referred to as the “financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013,
{“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies
{Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended (‘Ind AS’) and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the company as at 31" March
2025, its profit including other comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash flows
for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the “Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl) together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and- the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for cur audit opinion on the financial statements.

Information other than the financial statements and auditors’ report thereon

The Company’'s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and
Analysis, Board's Report including Annexures to Board's Report, Business Responsibility Report,
Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s information, but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor's report thereon. The other information is expected to be made
o us after the date of this auditor's report.
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Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether
such other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

When we read other information, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein,
we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and take
appropriate actions, if required.

Management’s Responsibilities for the Financial Statements

The Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in
section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give
a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other
comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the company in accordance with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsiblility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provision of the Act for safeguarding of
the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting the frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adeguate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicabie,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liguidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Company’s Management and Board of Director’s are atsﬁ responsible for overseeing the
Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
is.not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a
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considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 5As, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit proceduces responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has
adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management and Board of Directors.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of
the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and gualitative
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii)
to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
p?anned suanpe and timing of the audit and significant audlt ﬁndmgs including any significant
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section {11) of Section 143 of the Act, we
give in the “Annexure 1", a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of
the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by the Section 143(5) of the Act, and on the basis of such checks of the books
and records of the Company as we considered appropriate and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we give in “Annexure 2" of our report on the
compliances of the directions / additional directions, indicating the areas to be examined,
issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India.

3. Asrequired by section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including other comprehensive
income, Statement of changes in equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian
Accounting standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.

e) As per the notification number G.5.R. 463(E) dated 5th June, 2015 issued by Ministry
of Corporate Affairs, section 164(2) of the Act regarding the disqualifications of
Directors is not applicable to the Company, since it is a Government company.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to the
financial statements of the company and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 3" to this report. Our report expresses an
unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company's

__internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements.
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g) As per notification No. GSR 463(E) dated 5th June 2015 issued by the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs, Government of India, Section 197 of the Act is not applicable to the
Government Companies, Accordingly, reporting in accordance with requirement of
provision of section 197(16) of the Act is not applicable on the company.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as
amended), in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

(i) The Company does not have any pending litigation which would impact its
financial position in its financial statements;

(ii} The company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were any material foreseeable losses;

(iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the company.

(iv}(a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or
any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or
entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have
been received by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity
(“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries:;

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused
us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as
provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.
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(v) (a) The Company has not proposed any dividend in the previous year.

(b} The company has not declared and paid any interim dividend during the year
and until the date of this report.

{c) The Board of Directors has proposed a final dividend of 20.80 per equity share
for the year ended 31.03.2025, which is subject to the approval of the
shareholders at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The dividend proposed is in
compliance with the provisions of section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013, as
applicable.

(vi)Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used
accounting software systems for maintaining its books of account for the financial
year ended March 31, 2025 which have the feature of recording audit trail (edit
log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant
transactions recorded in the software systems. Further, during the course of our
audit we did not come across any instance of the audit trail feature being
tampered with and the audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per the
statutory requirements for record retention.

For Anil K. Goyal & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN 004558N

Alok Goyal
(Partner) ed
M. No. 501529 =

UDIN: 25501529 23MLDOAA0OR]

Place: New Delhi
Date: 21-05-2025
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Annexure — “1” to the Independent Auditor’s Report
(Referred to in paragraph 1 of the ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

To the best of our information and according to the explanation provided to us by the Company
and the books of accounts and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state
that:

1. Inrespect of the Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets:
a. (A) The Company has generally maintained proper records showing full
particulars, including quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant
and Equipment.
{B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of
Intangible Assets.

b. The Property, Plant and Equipment were physically verified by the
Management in accordance with a regular program of verification which, in
our opinion, provides for physical verification of all the Property, Plant and
Equipment at reasonable intervals. According to the information and
explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification.

c. The Company does not have any immovable properties; hence reporting
under clause 3(i)(c) of the order is not applicable.

d. The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment and
Intangible assets during the year.

e. No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the
Company as at 31* March, 2025 for holding any benami property under the
Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules
made thereunder.

2 a. The Company does not have any inventory and hence reporting under clause
3(ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable,

b. The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of £ 5
crore, in aggregate, at any points of time during the year, from banks or
financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets and hence
reporting under clause 3(ii) (b) of the Order is not applicable.

3 The company has not made any investment in, provided any guarantee or
_securities or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or
yfsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or other parties.

ge reporting under clauses 3(iii)(a)(b)(c){d)(e}(f) of the Order are not

LEEREEEREEEREEEE R ER R EE R EFEEEEEEEE R EEE R EEEEET e = T



-

- HSRC =P HSRC INFRA SERVICES LIMITED

applicable.

4 There are no loans, investments, guarantees, and securities granted by the
company in respect of which the provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the act are
applicable. Hence reporting under clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable.

5 The Company has not accepted deposits or amounts which are deemed to be
deposits. Hence, reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

& The maintenance of cost records has not been prescribed by the Central
Government under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 in
respect of activities of the company. Hence, reporting under clause 3(vi) of the
Order is not applicable.

7 Inrespect of statutory dues:

a. In our opinion, the company has generally been regular in depositing
undisputed statutory dues, including Provident Fund, employees’ state
insurance, income tax, goods & service tax, sales tax, custom duty, excise
duty, service tax and cess and other statutory dues applicable to it with the
appropriate authorities.

There were no undisputed amounts in arrears as at 31* March, 2025 for a
period of more than six months from the date they became payable except
Professional Tax amounting of Rs. 0.07 Lacs.

b. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
there are no dues of income tax or Goods & Service Tax or sales tax or service
tax or duty of customs or duty of excise or value added tax, pending to be
deposited on account of any dispute, hence, reporting under clause 3(vii)(b)
of the Order is not applicable.

8 There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have
been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments
under the tncome Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

9 The Company has not taken any loans or other borrowings from any lender.
Hence reporting under clauses 3(ix)(a}(b){c){d}(e){f} of the Order are not
applicable.

10 a. The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further
public offer (including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting
under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

. During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or
priuate placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or
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optionally) and hence reporting under clause 3{x}(b} of the Order is not
applicable.

11 a. No fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has been
noticed or reported during the year.

b. No report under sub-section {12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has
been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and upto
the date of this report.

¢. No complaint has been received from any whistleblower by the company
during the year (and upto the date of this report). Hence, reporting under
Clause 3(xi}(c) of the Order is not applicable.

12 The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under Clause 3(xii) of
the Order is not applicable.

13 In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013 with respect to applicable transactions with the related
parties and the details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the
financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

14 a. The Central Government has not prescribed to appoint internal auditor under
section 138 of the Act, for any of the services rendered by the Company.

b. Since Internal Audit is not applicable to the company, hence, reporting under
clause 3(xiv)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

15 In our opinien during the year the Company has not entered inte any non-cash
transactions with its Directors or persons connected with its directors. Hence,
provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the
Company.

16 a. In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section
45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause
3(xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order is not applicable.

b. In our opinion, there is no core investment company within the Group (as
defined in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016)
and accordingly reporting under clause 3(xvi}(d) of the Order is not
applicable,

7=Jhe Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by
plyr audit and the immediately preceding financial year.
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18 There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during
the year.

19 On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of
financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of
Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the evidence
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us
to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report
indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the
date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from
the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the
future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on
the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor
any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall
due.

20 As at balance sheet date, the Company does not have any amount remaining
unspent under Section 135(5}) of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx)
of the Order is not applicable.

For Anil K. Goyal & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 004558N

Alok Goyal \
(Partner)

M. No. 501529

UDIN: 2585015 19B™MIDoAGCRS

Place: New Delhi
Date: 21-05-2025
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Annexure — “2"” to the Independent Auditor’s Report
[Referred to in paragraph 2 of the ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

Directions/ Additional Directions Indicating the areas to be examined by the Statutory
auditors during the course of audit of annual accounts of HSRC Infra Services Limited, New
Delhi for the vear 2024-25, issued by the Comptroller & Auditor General of India Under
Section 143(5) of the Companies Act, 2013.

5. | Directions Auditor's Response

1. | Whether the company has system in place to process all | Based on the information and
the accounting transactions through IT system? If yes, the | explanations provided to us, the
implications of processing of accounting transactions:| Company has a system in place for
outside IT system on the integrity of the accounts along | processing the majority of its
with the financial implications, if any, may be stated. accounting transactions through the
Tally ERP system. Core financial
functions—such as general ledger,
accounts payable, and accounts
receivable—are fully managed within
this environment.

However, certain functions, including
payroll processing, maintenance of
the fixed asset register, computation
of depreciation, and generation of e-
invoices, are undertaken through
standalone systems or manually. The
financial outputs from  these

processes are subsequently
incorporated into the Tally ERP
| system.

Based on the audit procedures
performed, and as per the
information and explanations
- | provided to us, the transactions

~pprocessed  outside the  core

{hccounting system are appropriately
gaptured  within  the  system.
WAdequate controls have been

implemented to ensure the accuracy,
completeness, and integrity of such
data.
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In our opinion, the processing of
certain transactions outside the IT
system does not have any material
impact on the integrity of the
financial statements. We have not
observed any financial implications
arising from such processing during
the course of our audit.

2. | Whether there is any restructuring of an existing loan or
cases of waiver/write off of debts/loans/interest etc
made by a lender to the company due to the company’s
inability to repay the loan? If yes, the financial impact
may be stated. Whether such cases are properly
accounted for? (In case, lender is a government company,
then this direction is also applicable for statutory auditor
of lender company}.

Mo Loan has been taken by the
Company and as such it is not
applicable.

3. | Whether funds (grants/subsidy etc.} received/receivable
for specific schemes from Central/State Gevernment or
its agencies were properly accounted for/utilized as per
its term and conditions? List the cases of deviation.

Mo funds received [ receivable for
any schemes from Central / State
Government or its agencies and as
such it is not applicable.

For Anil K. Goyal & Associates
Chartered Accountants

M. No. 501529 —
UDIN: 255015 24 BMIDOATOEG
Place: New Delhi
Date: 21-05-2025
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Annexure — “3" to the Independent Auditor’s Report
(Referred to in paragraph 3(f) of the ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to the financial statements under
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")"”

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements of
HSRC Infra Services Limited ("the Company") as of 31* March, 2025 in conjunction with our
audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control with reference to the financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
{the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “ICAI").
These respansibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company's policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act").

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with
reference to the financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Mote on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting (the ‘Guidance Note’) issued by the ICAl and the Standards on Auditing prescribed
under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls with reference to the financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to
the Financial Statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.
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Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls with reference to these Financial Statements and their
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to the
financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with
reference to these Financial Statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgments, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to these
Financial Statements,

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to the financial statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to these financial statements is a
process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control with
reference to these Financial Statements includes those policies and procedures that (1)
pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2} provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
Company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to these
Financial Statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override
of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected,
Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to these
Financial Statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial
control over financial reporting with reference to these Financial Statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with
reference to the financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to
the financial statements were operating effectively as at 31* March 2025, based on the
criteria for internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note issued by ICAL. )

For Anil K. Goyal & Associates

Chartered Accountants

FRN: 0D04558N

Alok Goyal
(Partner) \&
M. No. 501529 =&

Place: New Delhi
Date: 21-05-2025
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HSRC INFRA SERVICES LIMITED
CIN: U45204DL2012GOI239289

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 315T MARCH 2025

{ ¥ in Lakhs)
Particulars ":I‘:“ As at 31st March 2025 As at 3151 March 2024
1. |ASSETS
1 |Non-current assets
{a} Propermy, Planr and equipment 3 2525 2547
&) Intangible Asscs 4 021 0.35
{c) Deferred Tax Asser (Mert) 5 17.63 16.73
43.0% 42.55
2 |Current assets
fa) Financial Asscts
{1} Tede Receivables 6 1,300.08 1,078:30
(i1) Caxh and cash equivalents 7 4,301.05 3,160.96
(ifi) Oirther Aroncial assees 8 1,504,324 1,567,748
B Currene Tax Assets (Mer) 17 175.20 133.02
{€) Onher cument assets 9 2537 37.19
T366.54 597725
Taotal Assers 740963 6, 019.80
1L |EQUITY AND LTIARILITIES
1 |Equiry
(w) Eoquoity Share Capital 10 4.500.00 4,500.00
) Other Equity 11 238833 1.206.03
6,888.33 5,706.03
Liabiliries
2 |Non-current Liabilitics
(i) Proveisions 12 2251 18,60
2231 18.60
3 |Current Habilities
{a} Vinancial Liabilices
(%) Trade Payable 13
{A) motal oumsranding dues of micr M516 205.44
caterprses amd simall enterprises
(B total pumitanding dues of creditons - =
other than micre enrerprises and amall
enterposes
(i} Other financial labilivics 14 40.26 2271
) Orther current Babilities 15 69.45 19,00
{c)  Provisions 16 44.12 48.02
() Currenr Tax LiabilitieafMer) 17 - -
498,99 20517
Total Equity and Liabilities 7.409.63 6,019,580

Corpomate Information and Summary of Matedal Accounting Policies {1-2)
Motez to the Amancial statements (3-40

As per our report of even date artached.
For Anil K. Goyal & Associates
Chartered Accountants

FRIN: 004558 .
San Eumar
A Diree
e DIMN03383641
CA Alok Goyal
Parmer
M No. 1529 -L rﬂa

Place : New Delhd

Date : }Iff,.ﬂd.‘l-jrr. Chief Financial {4ffcer
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Company Secretary
M. NO. AZTO5E

For and an behalf of board of DHrectors of HSRC Infra Services Limived




STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH 2025

{ T in Lalkhs)
Pariicul Mute | For the year ended | For the year ended
Mo, 31sx March 2025 3sc March 2024
' !Rlznzn.ue from operatons 18 512352 335359
Cither Income 19 36882 b e
Total Income 5492134 3,644.81
11, |Expenses: ]
Expenses on Operations 20 315295 1,934.58
Emplovee Benefit Expenses 2 47444 541.73
Finance Coses 22 . -
| Depreciation and amortization expenses 3 1280 10.42
Oither expenses 24 26457 202
Toml Exp 3,904.76 2,699.05
111 (Profit/{Loss) Before exceptional items and Tax (I-11) 1,587.58 94576
IV | Exceprinnal Trems
V| Profit/(Loss) before o (TH-IV) 1,587.58 94576
V1 |Tax expensc: L
(1) CCorrent tax
- For the vear 405,09 24373
- Fot eaelier years [ne) .28 [0G
(2 Deferred mx (net) 5 {L.77) 4.68)
Towml Tax Expense (VI A3,60 23911
Vil |Profit/ (loss) for the period from continuing operation (V-VI) 1,183.98 TOE.65

IVINN| Prof/ loss) from disconanued operabons - -
IX |Tax Expense of disconnnoed operations .
X |Profit/as) from discontnued operations (after mod) (VIT-TX) - -
KT | Profit/(Inss) for the period (VII+X) T,163.98 F06.65
XIT | Dither Comperehensive Income

A (1) Ttermis that will not be reclassified to profie snd loss
Remeasurement of defined benefit plans 344 Z93)
(i) Income Tax relaning to Tems thar will not be reclassified to profit and loss (ELHTY "7
B. (i) Trems thae will be reclassified o profitand loss = -
(U} Tncome Tax relacng to ftems that will be reclassified w profit aod loss = -
Towal Co hensive Income for the perind +XI11) (Comprehensive it mnd

e nll'ﬂ'dp:p’:tbeﬂlfb! income for the p‘:fiud} e : e AIES TR
KTV Barmings Per Equity Share:

(For Continuing Operadon) 25
(1) Bagic (Fuce Value Ra 10 Per Share) (In &) 263 157
{2y Dalured (Face Valee Rs. 10 Per Share) (In ) 2.63 1.57

Corporate Informanon and Summary of Marenal Accounnng Polices (1-2)
Mates 1o the financial statements (3-40)

As per our report of even dare ansuhed,
For Anil K. Goyal & Associates For and on behalf of board of Directors of HSRC
Infra Scrvices Limited

Charered Accountants
FRM: 04558

Place : Mew Dielhi

Date: 9 ) —g 2o 24 nr Seerctary

. AZ7O0H
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HERC INFRA SERVICES LIMITED
CIN; L4520 DI 2012 GOT239289
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON JIST MARCH 2025

_ { T i Lalkihé
For the year ended 3st For the year ended s
Foinam Murch 2025 Murch
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Prafit before taxation 1,587.58 4576
Adjustrmient fior 3
Depreciugon and amordzaton 1280 142
Totezesr Income (a3 (2RI
Lass on Disposal of Assers C LET .
Oither comprehensive intome 3aH 293)
Operating FProfit before warking capital changes m 124186 664,87
Adjustment for @
Dreciease / (Increasc) in Trnde Receivables [221.78) {41293
Drocviaie / (Frietsdse) e O Biee Binsmciil A 7.0 1y
Preerease) [/ Ineeease in Other Financual Lishikioes 1755 (166
{Deereasc) / Inceease in Oher Lishddisies & Provigons (11451 2126
(Mrecresse) [/ Tocrerse in Trade Paysble 1372 11337
(Detsnuse) f Ivcsame i Cithier Cooverit LibBies 045 {1341
Diecrease ¢ (Incoeaie] b’ Ovher Curcent Asscts 11.82 {!‘i.ﬁiljJ
[t 4.30 332,57
Caish gencrated from operation [+ 1,246,656 sz |
fncome Tax Pasd {MNet of refunds) [447.55) 330,53
NET CASH FROM OFERATING ACTIVITIES (A} LI L
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Properey, plant and equipment [Mer of 2ale peocesd) (1330) :"I:")l'l)i
“Tetrn Depesit having ongiml mamunity moey - than 12 months [4.59) 3.20)
Inmerest Received 6438 2674007
MNET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (B) 34545 244 50
CASH FLOW FROM FINAMCING ACTIVITIES
Share lsxue expenses 44T
NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES () an| -
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENT [A+B+C) 1,440,09 24636
CASH AND CASH EQUIVA o 3,160.96 Z918.60
Balance with Banks on cusrent accoment 6349 221363
Bakences with Banls on Fles Accounrs 210 TO090
Triproer Accomim 037 s
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT {CLOSING) (E} 4, M00.05 5,160.96
Balance with Banks on currean accoant 35008 163.42
Balaoors wdth Banks on Flexi Acoounts RN 2099710
fropreds Account 47 057
MET INCREASE/ (DECREASE) IN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENT n-E) L1409 24636

Corporare Informaton and Summary of Marenal Accountng Podicies (1-2)

Notes fix the fnancial strements [3-80)

2 The above fraremenr of Cash Flows bas heen prepased uades the "Tadirect Methiod” us st oot in die Indian Accounting Saodsrd (Ind AS) - 7 on Soemen:
of Cazh Flires.

b Figierus in Beackcts roprosent ootfiow of cash

As per our report of even date sntached,
For Anil K. Guyal & Associates For and on belalfl of board of Dicectors of HSRC Infra Services -
Chartered Acoouncanss Lirnited

FRM: (558N
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HEHC INFRA SERVICES LIMITED
Cls UdaDL 20120 EEweE
STATEMENT OF EHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 35T MARCH 223

18 bos Ll
Pk B!Il—w-ll:hr.»\th Changes due m Prior | Resoned Balanee aa a1 | Chacges in eqeity ahuse | Balance as st 31 Masch
o Peried Linwas . i Apeil 2034 vapital during the yoa: plie L
Mumbs of Saiare in Lakdis 43000 500 A5t.00
Amesiies 4,550.00 45000 i
2. A at 3 Musch, 2004
{8 im Lakha)
Pk :B-l—a--thlﬁj Chmsyers duc b Prive | Rostared Balance s st | Chamgrs in equity shen | Batance as ar 31st March
2oy Prrisal Ernur bae A peil ZEFY capital during the yesr o]
Peurmihir of Shae in Labhe ELTE) P 430,00
Aot 4,508 60 ARG AL
B. Drdser Equity
1. A i oy Mwrch 2080
1L ¥ in 1 akha)
2 L Phoverre I Bt
Faniculars ) Tonal
Balanic as st 1t Apnl 2004 20603 126w
L Tassgrn iy o oamma Doy oF [ s ST . Y
Wemestesd] Balance s ap far Apel 2004 1,306.03 1,205 8%
Theilin /(1o frw he yeat 1AL (AL
Cihes £ iergindhensive It e the yrar fist af iR
e B )
| Toml Compreheostve lacosme: Eaor e year LIB& 55 110N
o o
[lﬂhu-#mlﬁn_ﬁﬂ 33
1
2 A aa e March, 2024
lth%l
MIE
Party alars Hasrek Tead
a8 a7 Aped 205V SULSY HILET |
Charges i ponunning peles o fuices poriod enioes .
Testuned Balsnce w we lin Aped 36023 ST S0LAT?
Profin! o) B the o T 53 Tl
[visce CnmprrBensior T Boe il v for ol
i =1 2
| Teal Camprobessiva Fronmp fir the yess FTEY AL
Sl v it . =
|'H|ﬂ-|-u--|_’|u|llp:lﬂ,m '@ E
o Ik andl = v ol Mfstemal 4 g Podicies (117}

Sines o the fingesisl simscmens (347

As per ous repody of even date anschid.

Place : Now Delld
Darei 9| -5 =2024

Por and on behall of boasd of Divcotoms of HERC Lnls Services Ligded

el
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HSRC INFRA SERVICES LIMITED

CIM: U4SH4DL2012G 01230289
MNOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 35T MARCH 2028

Mote- Iz - Corparate Information

HERC [nfod senices Limited - Js public Smined, CTN: TH520HDL2012GOTI202A0 eompany domiciled and was incomonued in Indis wnder the
Froviione of the Company Aot, 1056 an fuly 25, 3002 with the Objeer of carming oot Business relaed te Plinding, designing, develupment,
conbuction, manufacturing, asembling, falricsting, peocessing, insalling, maiotennce, operstion, and finascing of Rashway Tnfrssimcee aind relsied
Ingistc suppan seacems, including eolling ateek, of all 1wpes in Todin and abroad of High Speed Hail eojecis sad ather mil based remiiic, a5 may be
approvied by Covernment of Indie: or Ral Vikss Migam lndted ar any othier such Competent Authority, HARE L i custonily providing business
development support 10 BVNL and Project management consdiancy sendices ‘The repistered office of the company is locazed 2t 151 Floor, Auggse
Kranti Bhawo, Bhikaji Cam PMlace, New Dielini- 11006, Livdia,

Mote 2i- Summury of Material Accounting Policles:

L1y Bagis of Preparation

#)  Swrement of Complianes

“The fnoancial starements 35 a1 end foe the perind ended 31 Masely, 3025 havve been prepared in scoordance wach Tndinn Accovnting Standazds (Trd-A%
poitified under sectinn 133 of the Compaides Act, 20973 a5 compandes {Indisn Aceounting Stndards) Rules, 2003 ns smended feom bme to time,

b}  Basls of Measurement

The financial statemerin hare been prepared: on s histodesl cose comeation asd on an aceral bass, except foe the fallowing iterms thar have been
mexsued ac s value o requived I selevant Ind AS:

i Drefimed beoefic Plan-ond other long venn emplorée benctits

€] Use of esdmates and judgemient

Primary Esemates-

The prepamitsin of financisl siements in confomsiy with Tnd A3 requices manageiment 1o make jodgroenis, satimated nnd nssunprions thar affect the
appilicativn of acccunting policies and the reported amounss of assets, [ahilities, dirchoiur: of eontingent assctd and liabiliies at the date of fnuneesl
siiements and the teponed amount of income and ckpenses. Fiamples of such estineies inclodes estimates 6f providon For doulaful delis, funere
nibligaions under employes reditenaent benell plans and esimared veefid lle of property, plant and equipment. Actual refults may differ from these
rrhmates.

Esimotes and undedying sssumptivns ore reviewed on a pertadic bass. Foure sesulis coyld differ due o changes in these estimates nad difference
berween the setual resuleand the eatimates are reesgnised in the perod in which the results are kaowis/ matenalize.

Al financial informariog presentod ju Indin oopecs and all values see runded 1o e netrest Inkhs ropess with tvo decimal poings excepn whees
otlieraise stted. D -t rouding off the numbers preseniod thephiot the documentary may notidd up precisely to the wils ool pescentage may
not precisely refleor the sbsolute fipares,

d) Functional and presentatisn currency
liemrs ineluded in the Enancizl satements are mensuncd (ning the cureency of the primary coconemic covirmamant in which the Gompany opemics
{Functional Curcency). The Bnancisl sutemeats o presenied in Todian rupess, which s peesentation curmency nf company,

e} Current versus Won-cumrent classification

The Company presears seets and Iabilies in (he Balanes Sheer based on cotrenty non current classification,

An wsret is treated os current whin i is:

Expreted to e realived o intended o be 20ld or consumed in nommal operating cyele

Expocual to Lo realized within twelve moniths afver the reporting pecod, oz

{ash ar cash equivalen unloss sesond from being exchanged or used o settle o lisbilitr for o least fvelve montlis afeer the reposting perind.
All piiber sssets are clasified 15 nos current. .

A liohility is current when:

T s cxpecred to be zentled in pormal opesating crcle

I is due 1o be detrlod within vwelve moaths alter the répooing periodl, or

There i+ ne umennditional dght ve defes the uulanoflhclublhtr Bor ot least twelve months afier the reporiog perod
Al odver Habalines are classified 25 nop-cutrenn

Deterred trx assess and linhilities aze clnssified o3 noo-current aszets and lishilines,

Baned on the nature of busdnzes aod the time beoween the poqulsition of sssets for tunaing e busloess 2nd it realization 30 cah 30d ek
eqivalents, the company hos ascermined in operating cycle a5 twebve months: for the puipose of eamen/ non-cureenr cassification of ascts and
linhilities.

2.2) Statement of Cash fow

Cash fowr are sepureed wsing the indisect methed, whensby profil f (oss) before tox is adjusted for the effects of trangactions of noncash naiure and
aiy defermls ur pecruals of past ae fsture cash skt or papmente, The cah (ews fram openting, idvesting and Bnancing activitics of the Company
are segrepated based om the available fofomaton

Far the purpeees of the cish flow statement, cash and eash equivalents include cash 3o hand, cashi ai baoks ned demsid deposies with haoks, net of
-‘-mnmnduwbmk :m.-nhl’u thar are repavable e denmnil stz eonsidaned part of the Comgany’s cath mangremenat system
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1.3) Praperty, plant and equipment

1- Peoperty, plant and equipment are measured 2t cost less scouwmulated depeesiadon and impalrmens losses, 1 any

Coat of pset includes the folloviog

1. Cost directly attabutsbie 1o e acqulstion of the ascts

i, Presgan value of the cstimated coses of didmanding & removing, the llemd & sesudang the dite on which it i locaed if reeojmillion ertenn are st

2= Cowt of replacement, major inspection, sepaie of significant pans are capiralized if the resogniton edieria ae mer.

3= An em of peopepy, plaot and sguipment is derecogrized upon disposal o wiven oo future seonone booefits are expected v are foom eontinied
e f aases, Any galn ot loss adsing on disposal o tetirement of an item of propesty, plant an equipmen is detemmined as the diffesence berween the
wile prococds and rhe catrving arneane of the asset and in rocogudaed in statement of profit o loss,

2.4) Intungible Asvets
Tntangilido assels are recogniced-when i is prabalile that the fisune economic bonefits that gee atdbotable w the assecwall Bow to e enterprise wnd
the cost of the asset con be mensuncd reliably. Imangible atsets swstated at histosieal cost less accumilaied amortization and inspaimoent loss, il any.

Iamngible asets compiise of licemie fees, other implementarion costt for system gofivare and other application safivare scquiced for fn-house e,
The cnats ars capimlized in the year in which the eclevan: softanre is implemcoted for use, The eost of an intangible ssser camprises ite putchnie price,
indudiog any buport dudes and other tuxes, and any disecdy antbutable expendivure on maldng the asset ready for its inrended use.

2.5) Depreclation

{n) Depreciation on Properny, plant sad Equipment iy neaovided on Sueight Line basds (SLM) over the useful life of the asses,

) Each pust of an ifem of Property, Plint and Equipment & depreciared sepamuely if the cost of pant is sigificant in-relation to the ol eost of the
ey and eseful il of thar parcis diffecent Eeean the gschal life of rooaining asset. '

Esdmated uselul life of asels ane a0 apedified in Schedule 11 of the Campenics Act, 2131w esimated weful life of aseté for curcent and
coanparative pepod of dgndficant ke of propery plane and cguipment’s for asscts other than given oo enmplovess are as follows:

Particulars Useful Life (yeams)
Computens 3
Fumniture and Fixtures "
Office Equipmeni’s .

The- catirmated wselul life of assers o oorome and comparative penod of significnr ireme of propeny plant and equipment’s for asseis ghven (o
emplayees are a5 (nlloas

Tarticulars Useful Lifis (yeare)

Maobile 2

Residenee Futnishing 5

Tablec Laptop 3

i) Deprecistion methods, usefil Hves and residoa] valses aee reviewed at enclr repoming dace, with the effaet of change in csrimate accounted for an o
progpective basis,

(d) Residualwabue of Assers is considered s 3% ol costof sssets

2.6) Provistons

Provision is recognised when:

i) The Company hisa presens obligadon as 2 realy of 3 past evenr,

i) A probable outflow of resousies iv expected to sende the obligation and

i) A eetiable exnimate of the st of the abligation can be made.

Reimbursemncat of the expenditure requiesd (o setile @ provision is cocopaiscd we per gonumet provisiens or whea it = irelly cetain that
reimbusement will be recelved.

Provisions ae ceviowed st each Balince Sheet date

Provision which expicted to be sctiled beyond 12 months are measured at the present vahue by usng prestax. discounr mate that reflects the daks
specific to the Gabilire, The incsease in the provision dhic 1o the passage of dime is recognized ns ifterest expensce.

2.7) Revenue Recogmition

2.7.1) Revenue from Contracts with Costomirs

#) Cosepany Recopnizes revenoe from conlmacts with custemens based on = Bve-step a5 set out in Ind AS-115-

{17 Tdendfy conteacts with o customen- A contact i defined a8 sn mgreement helwoen twe o more prries that. eveates coforeealic. dglits and
ohligntions and sete ot the enteria for every ooneact thar must be met.

() Tdemify pesformance obligations in e coatmet: A\ perfomance obligatdon is a promise in 1 contrct with a customer w transfer a good o serdes
tor thie Custoemer.

(i} Derermine the imnsscting price: The teansaction prige 18 the amount of considerarion w which the company expecis 1 be entrded io exchange for
tranaferring poomised poodh or sordcee o0 & customer excluding omownts collseted oo behalf of thind parties.

{iv] Allzsente the trnsaction price 1o the perfonmance obligiions in the contaer For a coneer that has maore than ene performance obligation i
Cormpany aliocares the maasacticn price to ench performance oblipation in an amount that depices the amount of consddemtion to which the Cotmpany
expects 1o be entitled in exchangs fot sabsfiing each perfofmance ohilipation.

{v] Recognive revenue when or 33 the Compauy sorishies 3 perlomuance ohligadon,

b) The Compeny satefies a pesfnnance: obligantion and roeognites mmvenue over the period of thoe whein ang of the follvaing cotena is met:
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(i} The costomes amulinneosly secetves and consumes the benefits provided by the Company's performance s the Coompany perfonns
(i} The Contapany’s pesfommsuce eocates or enhances an nsset that the customer contrls 08 the sseetis crested ar pohanced.
(] ‘The Company's pecformance dues not create an asset with nn altemative use 1o the company and the company bas an enlorceable nght e

payment for perfommance completed to date.

For pertormance obligations s oe of the sbove conditions ane not met réveme is recopnised a1 the peintin time atwhich pesfarmance
oblipation is satisfied,

c} The company uses the input methad fomeasine the progress of wore Considening che cursent navre of contcts, managemeat has

sssessed the use of inpus method to'be the most swted merhod to messere die piogeess tonands complete sutsfactivn of & perfornunce obligiton
satisfied over tme.

1) For Cost Plus eomtmsers: Reveoue is recogiised based en dnpor method i.e. Costincurred by ncluding eligible items of expendionee in the bills raised
an the cliznw and chagping specificd masgin thoseorn.

it} Fixed Prce Contmcis: Revenoe is recognised based ou fupan inethad with selerense 1o pescentage of couilétion as at the coponing date je. contrct
revenue are tocopmised as reverse by reference 1o the stage of complerion based on the contract ensts incurred for wark performe o] the reporting
date, relative 1o the estimated toal Controes Cost.

In other cases. where the outcome of a perfoanence ablipmtion is not seatombly measuecd, but coss eurred nee expeeted to be recovered, the
revenue is reodgmised only othe extent of the costs incoreed upto the end aof reporting period.

it} Unbilled Revenue repeesents value of performance ablipstion performed in accordance with the contrets rermi but ant billed o the Chene,

) The Company skersses its revenue armngements Against speeific criteda o determine i€ in is aetng a8 pAneipal ve ygrenr Revenwe 45 recogmized based
on the namire of acidy when considermion can be sensonably mesored and’ thicve éxite reasonable cerminegy of its recovery, Revenne from
ennseraction/ project telated pefivity = mossared at the smount company expects o be entitled taking into account contmecrually defined rerma of
payment 2nd exchading mxes and dury

2.7.2) Orher Revenue Recognition

Interest income 5 redopnized on 2 tme proportion: basis kdng ioto sccount the amount putstading and the terest tate applicable wsiog Eifective
Intesest rare Method.

2.8) Impairment of non-financial asscte

In accomlance with ladisn Accounzing Standad-36 Tmpdinment ol Assers, the carrying snownts of Company's ssers are revicwed at each Balines Sheet
dare 1o derermine wherher there is any indication of impaiament. IFanr such indicadcn existe, the aset’s recoverble amount i estdmated ns the higher
of the net selling price o the valus i we, An impaimen loss &= pecognized whenever the: camying amoont of a0 asmset on it cnh generadng unit
exceads s recovermble mmount.

On rhe basie of the review, the management 15 of the opinton thar e econmmic performance of Fixed Assers of the Company is not lower than
expected and therefore these is oo imgaitrment G0 any asscts as oo the Balanee Sheee date

2.9} Taxes
a) Cumrent income tax
i Toxes induding current mcome-tax are computed waing the spplicable wx rates and 1as liws,
il The s mees and il ssed 1o compute the amoent sse chose that are enacted o cubstantively enacied, at rhe reporming dare in the countrics
where the company opertes and generates txshle inonme.
ik, Chrrerit ivtome tax asvets and lisbiises foe current and: pror peaods are measored it the amount expeceed 16 be proavered from or paid e the
mxagon authortes, Uabilite for sdditional trxes iFany, i provided / paid 25 and when sssessments are completed.
fv: Curzent fax relared 1w QT Liem are iecognized in Otdiee Comprehiensive Tnconse (OC1.

b) Dvefersed 1o
i. Defermed inoome tax is recognized using balance sheet approach,
il Deferred income tax assen and Bahilities ase recogmized for tempariey differences whicl fe compubed osing the oo mees and fax lvaw tint have been
enaeted o substantively enaered ar the eposiing date,

1ii, Deferred incoine tax gsset aze reoognized to the exment that it is probable thit txable peofit will be svailable aginit which the dedueible cemposizy

differences, and the carmy forward of unused tot credits and unussed vt Jogecs can be utilied.

iv. The eamyiog amownt of defered tncome rax assets is reviewsd av each reporting dite and eeduced o the extent that it 34 oo longee probable thar
sufficient taxabile profiv will be available 1o allow all or pan of the deferred income 12 asset to be utilized,

v, Deferred fx rehated o OCT Temize cecopnized in Other Comprehensive Income (OCT).

2.10) Earnings Per Share.

In determining busic cariugs per shace, the company comsiders the net peofit sitdbunble to eqaty sharcholders, The aimber of shares wed in
compuiing basic exmings per shane is the weighted averge muonber of shares cutsinnding during the pericd. Tn determining dilured earninge per sharee,
the aet profic atcdbutable o equity shamsholders and weighted averge number of shares cursmnding dunng the penod are adjusred Ffor rhe effect of all
dilustve parential equiny shares.




1) Contingent Lizhilities and contingent Assets

{3} Contingent Liabiliciés ace discloced in cither of the following case
1) A presenr obbigntion adsiog from & past evenr, when it 3% not probable that an auflow of resources will be reginred to senbe the oblimton; or
i} A relisbile extimace of the peesent oblipstion conant be marle or
i) A pessilile ablipation, unless the probabiline of ourflow of resource s remoe,

) Contingent nssers is disclosed where w inflow of cennnmic benefies is probatile.

(g} Contingens Liabilice snd Provgsions needed agminst Contmpent Liabiling and Contingent Assers ave reviewed ar each Reporting date.

{d) r.l”:llﬂ'il'lﬂ.'.n't Liabilicy 15 pet of esnmated lwm'i:inm' considenng I:m.-l.ihlz outflov: an senlemenn

2.12) Employee Benefirs

. Shert term employes Benefits
All eployes benefits payable wholly within twelve menths of rendenng the services are classified as shont term employes beneliv, Benelin such as
salaries, wages and shorl-term coampensated absences ete. are recognised in the perdod in which emplodee reoders the sélated service.

b, Long Term Employes Benefit
The abligaging for long-term copleéyes benefing such as Long-term compentated sbacnces erc. iy accounted for oa senansl valustion made ar the end
of vear. Actuadsl gaine/logses sre cecopmised tn saemim of peofit sud Joss frae e vear,

& Post Employment Benelis

(1} Defined Conttihurion plans: The Compaay mmakes the defined contribution v
o) Prowidens Fund Scheme ) .
b Matinnal Plan Sclieme by the Govt. of lodio (PERDIAJ in respent of the pension scheme,
The Contdbution paid / payable wider the echénes is recognized dunng e pesiod in which emplovee tenders the sefated servce,

{if) Defined Benefir Plans: Guarcin is n poat-cmployment defincd beoefic plan: The lisbiliny recognized in the balince sheet i3 the present value of
the defined Lenefis olbiligadon ¢ the balance shect date. The defined benefit oblintion is caloulated by an independent actunsy wsing projected unit
ereddin (PUC) methed. Actuarial gaing and losses are reerymized immediately in Other Comprehensive [ncome.

(inij Me-measurements conprising of actuatial gring and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, exchsding amounrs included in e interesr of defined
benchit ahilin: and the retwrn do plan assets fexcloding amounts inchudkésd in rbe net interesy on dee net defined benefic lability), are recognised
irrmiedintely in Ohibier Comprcbensive [neame{OCT) in the period in which ther occur, Re-measircmenss ore pot peclassilied te Profic 8 Loz in

subsequent period,

2.13) Cash and cash equivalent
Casls and cash equivalen: cormprse eash ot baik and on band, 1t inchedes teem deposits and short term mogey marker depeatts waith oopual memnes
of theee months or Jeis tha aee readily convertible 1o known amounts of eash ond which are subjeet 0o an Dsignificant dob of changes in valus

2.14) Financial instruments
Aj Tesitind moeogmition and mexsirement
TFinancial assets aod Goascal linbilities are hi_.l'i'lﬂ}' mesured 2 fair value, ‘Impsscron coges that nre d.irﬂ:dr attdbutahle 1o the sCOuosiion o st of
fimancil siscts aned Bonaneisl labifitics {other than hnancal ssger and habelines st favr value throwgh probit & loss) aze sdded to or deducted from the fir
value messured on intial secogrition of the fuancial sssecs or fnancal habilides.
Hewever, tiade receivables that do sl coatzin a signifiennt Anancing conponent ore measured ot transaction poce.
B). Subsequent measurcrnent
i} Finangial Asiers
financlal sesers are clasificd in following categones;
A) A Amortbed Cost
1) Faie vaboe thoough Other Compeehensive Income.
< Fur valoe throuph Profit and loss sconont.

1. Dbt insreurment ol Amortsed Cost
A firmneial asset shall be moinmed at amortdsed eost il both of the following conditons are met:
{u) thet francial nsset is bebd within a bosines miodel whese oljectie is to hold financal asrets in order to colleet contmonml cash fows and
{la) The contrictual teeme of the finndal st ghve tee on specified dates o cash Aows thai are solely paymonts of poocipal and interest oo e
principal amount outstanding )
Fimnencial assers inessured ar smordsed cost using effectve interest wate method toss impairment [f any. The BIR amortdsation i included in nance
ingome in the #arement of profit wmd loss;

Lsy. Dyl instrnmment 2t FYTOCT

A 'debt msvrament” i clissified a3 an the FYTOCL W badh of the-following entena are mee

= Thie objecdve of the busieess model is schieved both by collecting eontractual cash: Bows und selling rhe Brancial assers, and

* The asset’s cantractal cash flevs represent SPPL.
Db instruments included within the FVTOCT eategory are measured indtially as well as at each reponing date ot fir value, Fair value movements are
recogmiead i the other comprehemive incame (O], However, the company recognizes: interest income, npairtent |osees & ceviersals and foreign
exchinge gain or loss in the P&L. On de-recognition of the asser, cumlarive gain or loss previously recognised in OC] ks teclassified from the equity 1o
P, Turerest earned is recognised using the ETR method,
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¢}, Debt instrument at FYIPL
FVITL s a sesichml entegney for finandal Asses Aoy finndcial assets, which does aot mwer the ciiteds for catsgoristion as &t amostized cott o as
FYIOCT, is elnssificd o o FYTPL.
In additon, the company sy clect to dexigoae Bnoncinl asset, which otheowise meets amortized cost o FVTOCT crtena, o5 a0 FYITPL I doing so
reduces or eliminares o messunsment o recognition inconsisteney. The company has not decignated aor financial aeet o ot FVTPL,
Financial assets included within the FVITPL eatepon ate measured ot fairsalue with all changes recognized in the profoand loss,

i) Financind linbilivics

1) Financia] Babilivies w Amortived Cost

Financizl lishilities ar amorised eost eepresenied by wade and orher papables, secanty deposits and retenton  movey are intally recognized at fais
value and pulricquently casted ac amortized cost using the effcctive interest mie metheod.

Iy} Financial liabilities ar FVTPL

The company has ant designated any (nancial liabilides o FYIPL,
). Derecogrition

‘inancial Asset

A fiomneie] asser for, where applicable, a pagt of « Goancinl assct o pan of a growp of s Gruscal wssets) is dezccognized only when the eontrcio)
rghts o the cash Aows from rhe osset expires o i isnstees the financial assers and substandally all oreks and rewerds of the conetship of the aset.
Firmncial Liabilioe
A fingncial Hability | derccognised when the chiigation ender the Labdiny is dischiarged or cancelled or expires. When an exteung fowcial Dabidicy is
replaced by another from the same leoder oo substndally different reems o the reoms of an cxisting liabilite are substandally modified, such an
exchange ar medification is treared as 2 derccognition of the onging Habilite aad the secognitlon of 2 new lability and the diffcrence in the rspective
caryityr wrnounts-is recognived in the Income starement

. Toopairmacit of finnacizl assets

In according with Ind As 108, the company applics expecied ceedit Ioss {ECL) modid for messgeement and recngniiion of impaioment Ioss on the
loliowing finsacial asscis and credit sk exposure |

i} Finneeial Assers g are debr instnonents, are measured af amorised cost €z lonng, debr securitien, deposits, tride seceivables aoid bank balaince.

b} Trade receivables or any eonemeneal tight 10 receive cash or anather fnsocial asser vhar resulr feom trnsactions than ase within the soope of Tnd Ax
113

The Company fallows” simplifisd approsch’ for cecogmition of impoiement foas allowsooe oo

= Trade recevahles and

- Uther financial assers

Trade reecivabile:

Also che pecelvnble from company compasies are considered o be good and there are neither been amy past instances of default and also managemnent
dees not expect Aoy defoult in ease of compainy receivables, thecelvsie lmpaitment losses are not recogalied a3 per [nd AS 100,

2.15) Prior Period Ermes
Mareral Priar pedod ersoms and earmeered setrospectively by nedtating the compasamie nmounts for the pedod preseated io which the eror oocurecd., [F
the geror nocurred before the earicst pedod presamted, the opening balance of dsiety, labilites and equity for the eadicst perod peescated. ace restared.

2.16) Project Transfer

MoR Funded Projects through RVNL: PWIF of MoR funded projects are adjusted against fund received from MeR through RVNL. The
amount of expenditure incurted on projects recogmised during the period including opening balunce of FWIP for MoR funded projects are
being adjusted as at 3L.03.2018 from the fund received from MoR theough BVNL and from subsequent year adjustment are carricd out on

annually basis.

2.17) The Aceovnting Policies that are currently not relevans ra the company have nor been disclosed, when such accounting policies besnme relevn,
the sanie shall be disclessd.

2.18) New Standards / Amendments and Other Changes effective April 1, 2024 or theseaftes

The Minisoy of Corporare Affaics ("MCA™) notifies new itndasds of amesdment o the exisiag stmdsrds under Compantes Indian Aceounting
Srandards) Ryles a¢ igsued From tume to tme. For the yenr ended March 31, 2025, MOA bas notifed Ind AS — 117 Insumnce contmee 2od amendincnis
10 Ind A5 116 = Lenres, relnung to sdle and leaseback transactiong, applicable w0 the Company wef. Apol 1, 2004, The Company has eeviewed the new
pronouneements based on i evaluation bas detcemined that it does ot hove aoy inpagr in s finsncinl statements,

2.19) Mew Standard [/ Amendments issued but not yet effective

Mindsiry of Compomte ARt "MUEA") notifies new standard o amendmenis 1o the exising standdrds. There is oo soch norifleation upte 3151 Mazeh
2025 which woult hnve been applicable cHizenve from Apdl Ta, 2025,
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HSRC INFRA SERVICES LIMITED
CIN: U45204D1L2012G 01239280

MWOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2028

Mote 3 : Property, Plant and equipment

{ 2 in Lakhs)
Sarticdes Office Equipments Fumituee & Fixtures EDP Asset Taotal
Cant
1st April 2023 . 629 3.7 3.4 L.y
Additions ' 435 0.7 14.23 19.29
Disposals/Adjustments - - - -
As at st March 2024 164 4.48 27.44 42,56
Additons 10,67 1.38 273 14.78
Disposals Adpustments 3.1 {1.75) {160} [6.47)
Az ar 31zt Marcch 2023 18.19 4.11 28.57 50.87
Depreciation
st April 2023 1.4 070 486 650
Depreciation chatge for the pear 248 0.58 1.3 10.29
Disposals /A djustments - - - -
As at 315t March 2024 372 126 200 17.09
Depreciation charge for the yenr 34 0.38 834 12,66
Dizposals/ Adustments {2.26) n94) (.93} (%13
As ar 31st March 2025 540 0.72 19,50 25.62
Met book value
As at 31st March 2025 12.79 339 9.07 25.25
As at 315t March 2024 6.02 320 1535 25.47
Muote 3.1 : Property, Tant and Equipments has nor been revalued duting the year
Mote 3.2 ¢ There are no capital work in progress as oo halance sheer date
Naote 4 : Intangible Assets
_ { 2 in Lakhs)
Pariculars Saftware Total
st April 2023 0.54 0.54
Addidons - -
Dispeosals/ Adjustmens - -
As at 315t March 2024 0.54 0.54
Addidons - -
Disposals/ Adjussments S -
As at st March 2025 0.54 0,54
Amortisation
1st April 2023 0.06 .06
Amortisation for the vear 015 013
Drzposalsf Adjustments - -
As at 315t March 2024 019 01
Amortisaton for the vear 014 0,14
Digposals S A djustments - -
As at 315t March 2025 033 0.33
Met book value
As at 31st March 2025 .21 0.21
As at st March 2024 0.35 0.35

Mote 4.1 : Thete is no intangble asset under development as on balance sheer date.
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HSRC INFRA SERVICES LIMITED
CIN: U45204DL2012G 01239289

MNOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH 2025

Mote 5 : Deferred Tax

(% in Lakhs)
. . Asat As at
Particulars 3151 March 2025 31st March 2024
Deferred tax liability - -
Deferred tax assets 17.63 16.73
{Deferred tax liability}/ Wet of deferred tax assets 17.63 16.73
The balance comprises to temporary differences attributable to:
Deferred Tax Assets
Provision for emplovee benefirs 1672 16,71
Property, Plant and Equipment & Inrangible Assews 0.m 0.02
Deferred Tax Liability
Property, Plant and Equipment & Intangible Assets - 4
17.63 16.73
MNote 5.1 : Movement in Deferred Tax (Liability) / Assets
( ¥ in Lakhs)
Property, Plant and
Particulars Intangible Employee Benefits Total
Equipment
Balance as at 1st April 2023 (0.05) 1136 1151
Charged/ (credited) during the perod
To Statement of profic and loss 0.07 4.61 4.68
Toy Other comprehensive Income 0.74 0.74
Balance as at 31st March 2024 002 16.71 16.73
Charged/(credited) during the period
To Statement of profit and loss 0.29 0.68 1.77
To Other comprehensive Income (0.B7) (0.87)
Balance as at 31st March 2025 0.01 16.72 17.63
Mote 6 : Trade Receivables ( ¥ in Lakhs)
N As at As at
P ulars
artie 31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Unsecured Considered good
“Trade Receivables 74547 218.11
-Unhilled Revenue 554,61 25019

Total 1,300.08 1,078.30
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HSRC INFRA SERVICES LIMITED
CIN: U45204DL2012G0O 1239239

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 315T MARCH 2025

{ T in Lakhs)
Partculars For the year ended 3ls For the gtn:‘?me.dsm
March
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Met Profit before raxation 1,587.58 576
Adjustrment for :
Diepreciation and amontization 1280 1042
Tnterest Income (363.83) (Z8R38)
Loss on Disposal of Assers . 187 -
Crther comprehensive income 3ok (293)
Operating Profit before working capital changes i 1,241.86 664,87
Adjustment for :
Decrease / (Increase) in Trode Recenvables (Z21.TH) (412.93)
Decrease / (Ineecase) in Ovther Financial Asscrs 7401 13
(Deerease]) ¢ Tncrease in Other Financul Lislikes 17.55 0.6
{Decrease) / Increase in Other Lisbilities & Provisions 003 21.26
(MDecrease) / Increase in Trade Payalble 13972 113.37
(Decrease) £ Inczease in Other Curcent Liabilitics 50.45 (13.11)
Trecrease / (Increaze] in Crther Current Assers 11.82 {31.64)
) 4.5 (332.5T)
Cash gencrated fromy operation A+2) 1,246.66 33230
Income Tax Pad (Mec of refunds) (H47.55) | (330.53)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES A) 711 177
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchass: of Property, plant and equipment (Wee of sale peoceed) (1431 9284
Termn Deposit having original marunty mose than 12 months (4.5 (.20
Inmerest Recenned 415 26107
MNET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (B) 345.45 244,50
CASH FLOW FROM FINAMCING ACTIVITIES
Share Issue expenses (4.47)
WET CASH FROM FINAMCING ACTIVITIES () (4.47) -
MNET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENT (A+B+C) 1,140.09 246.36
" CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT (OPLNING) ®) 3.160.96 251460 |
Balance with Banks on curgent sccount 163,49 21363
Balances wath Banks an Flexi Accounts 209710 T00.90
Tmprest Aecount .37 oor
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT (CLOSING) (E) 4,30L.05 3,160.96
Halince wirh Banks on cureent account 359.74 163,49
Baknces with Banks an Flexi Accounrs 3,040,580 299710
Imprest Account a7 037
MET INCREASE; (DECREASE) IN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENT (D - E) 114009 246.36

Corpotare Information and Swtnmarny nf-hhmr'l.l] Accounting Policies {1-2)

Motes to the Anancial staterments (3-80)

a. The above Saremenr of Cash Flows has been prepared under the “Indirect Method™ s set out in the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind A%) - 7 on Stacement
of Cash Flas.

b Figures in heackers sepresenr outflow of cash

As per our report of even date attached,
For Anil K. Goyal & Associates For and on behalf of board of Dircctors of HSRC Infra Servdocs
Chartered Accountants Limired

FRIM: 004558

Plnce : Wew Delhi
Date: 2 -5 2oz
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CIN: U45204DL2012GO1239289

HSRC INFRA SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 318T MARCH 2025

Note 11 : Other Equity

{ ¥ in Lalkhs)
, As at As at
Pardeulars 31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Retained Earnings (Refer Note 111 2388.33 1,206.03
Total 2,388.33 1,206.03
MNote 11.1 Retained Earnings
(% in Lakhs)
Ag at As at
Particula
"‘ 315t March 2025 st March 2024
Opening Balance 1,206.03 501.57
Add : Profit for the Year 1,183.98 T06.65
Add : Other Comprehensive income arising from remeasurement ._
of defined benefit obligation net of income tax 257 (2.19)
Less : Share issue expenses (4.235) -
Closing Balance 2,388.33 1,206.03
Mote 12 : Non Current Provisions
{ ¥ in Lakhs)
As at As at
Particul
rheans 31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Provision for Employee Benefits
Gratuity 13.82 11.02
Leave Encashment 8.49 7.58
Total 22.31 18.60
Mote 13 : Trade pavable { Tin Lakhs)
. As at As at
Packiioatics 31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Toral ﬂ.utstmdlng dues of micro enterprises and small 34516 205.44
enterposes
Total cutstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterpases and small enterprises : =
Total 345.16 205.44
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(¥ in Lakhs)
Mote 14 : Other financial liabilities
{ ¥ in Lakhe)
. As at As at
Particulars 31stMarch 2025 31st March 2024
Other Payables .
Related patty 382 433
Cithers 34,44 18.38
Total 40126 2271
More 15 : Other cutrent liabilities
( 2 in Lakhs)
. Ag at Ag at
Particulars 31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Stanerory Liabilites
Tax Deducted ar Source 33.67 18.78
Professional tax 0.07 0.07
Goods and Sendces Tax 45,55 .
Prewvident Fand 0.16 0.15
Total 69,45 19,00
MWaote 16 : Current Provisions
{ T in Lakhs)
. As at As at
Farticulars st March 2025 31st March 2024
Provision for Emplovee Benefits
Gratuity 0.02 0.0
Leave Encashment 0.26 0,25
Performance related pay and others 43.84 47.54
Provision for Stemp Dury - 022
Total 44.12 48.02

D ———————
Mote 17 : Current Tax

( % in Lalkhs)
. As ar As at
P““‘“’l‘:‘ 31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Current Tax Assets, (Liabilities)
Prepaid taxes 580.29 376,75
Prowvigion for Cartent Tax {4[]5.09‘} (243.73)
Net Current Assets, (Liabilities) 175.20 133.02

Mote 17.1 : Prepaid raxes include TS relating to eadier years, which are subject to reconciliadon with RVNL and subscquent recovery
froun the Income Tax Depantment. The management considers such TDS as fully recoverable, and accordingly, no provision has been
made in the financial statements.
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HSRC INFRA SERVICES LIMITED
CIMN: U45204DL2012GO1239289
MNOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH 2025

Mote 18 : Revenue from Operation

{ T in Lakhs)
. For the year ended For the year ended
Particula
e 31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Sale of Services 5,123.52 3,353.59
5,123.52 3,353.59

Note 181 : As per Paragraph 31 of Ind AS 115, an entity shall recogpize revenuc when (or as) it satishes a perfonnance obligation by
rransferdng a promised good or service (Le., an asset) to the customer, An assct s considered transferred when (or as) the cusmomer
obtains control of that asset. In line wirh this requirement, revenue in reapect of the coneract with J5%W is recopnized 1o the extent of
80% of the contract prce upon submission of the final feasibility report for 10094 electrification at the JSW Seecl Plant, Vijayanagar,
Kamataka, up to FY 2024-25, The remaining 20% of the revenue will be recognized upon acceptance of the final report on the
comprehensive fensibility study for electrification, in accordance with the terms and conditions of the contmer,

Mote 18.2 TAS/DA expenses are initially incurted by employees engaged through a manpower outsourcing company om behalf of
HSRCL. for vatous Project Management Consultancy (PMC) assignments. These cxpenscs are subsequently seimbursed to the
Company by RVML, Since the tmansaction repeesents a mere reimbursement of expenses, both the TA/DA expendimre and the

comesponding reimbursement have been nerted off in the financil sttements

Mote 19 : Other Income

( ¥ in Lakhs)
. For the year ended For the year ended
Particula
ArticuE 31st March 2025 315t March 2024
Interest on Flexi Account 261.11 188,77
Imtesest on Fixed deposits Account 102,72 .61
Interest on Income Tax Refund 4.09 237
Misc, Income = 0.47
Total 368.82 291.22
Mote:- 20 Expenses on Operation
{ Tin Lakhs)
. For the year ended For the year ended
P ulars
ame 31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Expense on Operadon 315295 1,934 88
Total 315295 1,034.88
Note:- 21 Employee Benefit Expenses
{ % in Lakhs)
For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars
31st March 2025 3t March 2024
Salary and Wages 424.24 481.08
Contnbution to Provident and other funds 31.36 35.07
Seaff Welfare Expenscs 18.84 24.68
Total 474.44 54173 |
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Maote:- 22 Finance Costs
( ¥ in Lakhs)
. For the year ended For the year ended
Pacticulars $1s¢ Macch 2025 15t Macch 2024
Interest Expenses - -
Total - =
Mote:- 23 Depreciation and amortization expenses
{ Tin Lakhs)
] For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars 315t Macch 2025 315t March 2024
Froperty Plant and equipment 12,606 10.29
Intangible Assets 0.14 0.13
Total 12.80 10.42
Mote:- 24 Other expenses
{ ¥ in Lakhs)
. For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars $1st March 2025 $1ot March 2024
Payment to Auditors:
As Auditors 262 237
For Taxation Matter 0.78 0.71
For Reimbursement of Expenses 0.03 014
Advertisement Expenses 0,08 -
Business development expenses 0.83 070
CSR Expenses (Refer Mote Mo, 36) 10.92 -
Communication Expenses 361 ek |
Legal & Professional Fees 95.94 706.52
Meetng and Conference Expenses 7.62 6.16
Misc., Expenses 14.99 10.48
Office Expenses 223 1.72
Printing & Stationary 13.11 12.08
ROC Fee Expenses 0.05 0.23
Sofrware Charges 0.07 1.30
Subscription Charges 0.35 0.16
Travelling & Coanveyance 110.82 96.70
Website Maintenance Charges 0.52 0.44
Total 264.57 212.02
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HSRC INFRA SERVICES LIMITED
CIN: U45204DL2012G0123928%
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 318T MARCH 2025

Mote: - 25 Tax Expense

(T in Lakhs)
. For the year ended For the year ended
Pariculars 315t March 2025 315t March 2024
Current income f&ax:
Current income rax charge 405,09 243.73
Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous yeat 028 006
Dleferred rax:
Relating 1o origination and reversal of tempomry differences (1.77} (4.68)
I in th
neome tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss 403,50 23911
Maote: - 25.1 Other Comprehensive Income scction
Dieferred tax related o items recognised in OCT dusing the vear (¥ in Lakhs)
. For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars 31st Mareh 2025 31st March 2024
Tax on net gain/(loss) on remeasurements of defined benefit plans 0.87 0.74)
Total 0.87 (0.74)

Note: - 25.2 Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate for period ended

st March 2025
(T in Lakhs)
. For the year ended For the year ended
i 31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Accounting profit before tax from continuing operations 1,587.58 945.76
Profit/(loss) before tax from a discontinued aperation - =
Accounting profit before income tax 1,587.58 945.76
At India’s statutory income tax rate of 25.168% 39956 238.05
Adjpustments in respect of cumment income tax of previous year 0.28 0.06
Expenses Mot deductible for Income Tax Purpose 3.54 1.02
Others 0,22 .
Income Tax expenses reported in Sratement of profit and loss 403.60 239.11
Effective tax Rate
Income tax expense reported in the smrement of profie and loss 403,60 239.11
Income tax artributable to a discontneed operagon
403.60 23511

Effective tax Rate 25.42%, 25.28%
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HSRC INFRA SERVICES LIMITED
CIMN: V45204 DL2012GOI239289
MOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCE 2025

Maote: = 26 Eamings per share (EPS)

fin Ty

. For the yvear ended Far the year cnded
DA, 31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Basic EPS
From condnuing operation 2.63 1.57
From discontinuing aperating - -
Diluted EPS
Froum continuiog: operation 263 1.57

Fromm disconfiouing opetution

26.1 Basic Earning per Share
Basic EPS amounts are caloulared by dividing dhe profit for the period andbutable o equiry holders of the company by
w:iglu:d average number of cquity gharcs outstanding: during the peood

The earnings and weighted aversge oumbier of eguin shares vsed in calculadon of basic earning per share:-

{2 in Lakhe)
For the year ended For the year ended
Temsan 31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Profit anributalile to equity holders of the
COmpany:
Continuing operations 1,183.98 THG.65
Discontinuing operations
Eamings used in calculation of Basic
Eaming Per Share L,183.98 T06.65
Weighred average number of shares for the 450.00 450,00
putpese of basic carnings per share (in Lakhs)
26.2 Diluted Eaming per Share
‘The earnings and weighted mrerape oiinber of equiry shares used in aalevnlanon of dilated earning per shase:-
{ ¥ inx Lakshs)
Parti For the vear ended Faor the year ended
eluse 31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Profit attributable o equiny holders of the
Continuing operations 1,183.98 T06.65
Mzcootnuing operatons
Effeer of Diluton - .
Farnings used in calculation of diluted
Eaming Per Share from continuing 1,183.98 T06.65

operations

“The weighted number of cguity shares for the purpose of diluted eaming per share reconciles 1o the weighted average
numibeer of equity shares used in caleulton of hasic earmiag per share ss follows:

(Mumber of Shares in Lakhs)

N For the year ended For the year ended
Harhcaiace 3151 March 2025 31st March 2023
Weighted average momber of [iguity shares
used in ealculation of basie earnings per shaze R A
Effect of diluton: E =
Share Options:

Wenghted sverage oumber of Equity shares

used in calcolition of diluced carnings per 450.00 450,00
shure B T
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HSRC INFRA SERVICES LIMITED

HSRC INFRA SERVICES LIMITED
CIN: U45204D1L2012G01239289

27 IND AS-115 Diisclosures

The Company has adopted IND AS 115 Revenue from contracts with customers.

Transition Method:

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH 2025

The Company has applied modified rerrospective approach for the application of Ind AS 115 "Revenue from

contracts with customers”

27.1 Disaggregation of Revenue (¥ in Lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024
Income From Project Management Consultancy 4.526.63 264271
Income from Project Feasibility Study - 131.36
Income from Business Development Services 296,89 a79.52
| Tatal 5,123.52 3,353.59

27.2 Contract balances (¥ in Lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024
‘Trade receivables 745.47 218.11
Contract assets 554.61 850,19

Contract liabilities

i) Trade receivables are non-interest bearing, Customer profile mainly include promoter of company.

if) Contract Assets are recognised over the pedod in which services are performed to represent the entity’s dghe to
consideration in exchange for goods or services tansferred to the customer. It includes balances due from customers
that arise when the company receives payments from customers 2s per terms of the contracts, however the revenue is
recognised over the perdod under input method. Any amount previously recognised as a contract asset is reclassified
to trade receivables on satisfacdon of the condidon attached Le. future service which is necessary to achicve the

Billing milestone.

27.5 Movement in Contract Assets Balance (% in Lakhs)
Particulars As at 3st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024
Contract Asset at the beginning of the year 86019 387.56
‘Transfer from Contract Asser to Trade Receivable and (305.58)
increase as a result of changes in measure of progress 472.63
Contract Asset at the end of the year 554.61 860.19

customers is Nil during the vear.

Impairment loss recognized on any receivables or contract assets adsing from an the company's contracts with
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HSRC INFRA SERVICES LIMITED
CIN: Ud5204DL2012GO1230289
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 35T MARCH 2025

MNote 36
c Social B ihil
Ag per Seeion 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a company, meeting the applcability threshold, needs o spend ae lesse 2% of its avenige net
profit for the immedinrely preceding three Goancial vears on Corpoeaee Social Responsibilisy (C5R) activities,
u) The Company is tequired 1o spend Rz 1092 hikhs on Comparste Sodal Responsibiliny (CSR) duning the FY 24-25 in sccordrnce with
Section 135 of companics Aoy 213
b)Y Amounr spent during the vear

(¥ in Lakhbs)
Particular Flst March 2025 Slat March 2024

i} Conamacton acquisition of any assers =
) On purpose other than ([ above
Healthcare & Sanitadon 10.92

[Tatal 10.92 5
e} Diigelostres. ax required by Sehedules 1] aFcompanies Act 2015 (¥ in Lalcha}
Particular 3ls: March 2025 Ssi Maech 2024

(@ Amount sequureed 10 be speor by ths compainy duning the vear 1092 -
(i) Adnoune of cxpenditure incureed, 1092 3
{tia) Shorfall at che end of year - -
{iv) Details of relared partye reansactione - -

d) Mature of CSR activite Bridging healtheare necess gap in suml Tndia / tally medicine centre ot Sant
Kabir Nw-ﬂ ur.

MNote 3T: Disclosures pursuant (o amendment in Schedule I of the Companies Act 2015

Certain other disclosures ag reguired by Compames Act, 2013 .are 5 follow ;

{f) The Company has no ansactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Acr, 2013 éz Section 560 of Compasics
Acr, 1956 durimg the period,

11} The Company has nor tmded oriavested In Crypto Currency or Vispual Currency during the petiod,

{ii) The Company do not bave any Benami propery, wheee any proceeding his becn initiared o pending againat the company for halding
any Benarni property.

(iv) The Company do not have any mareral prior pedod emvors o be disclosed separately in statement of changes in equity:

(v} The Company do nor have any chatges or sardsfacrion which = et oo be registered with ROC beyond the statutony penodd.

(vi) The Company bave not advanced or loaned or dnvesed funds o any othe person(s) o ennryfies), ncluding foreign entides

iIntermediaries} with the understnding that the Intermediary shall:
{a} directly or indirectiy lend or invest in other persons. or enttes dentificd in any manner whatsoever by or on bebalf of the of ﬂﬂ.cmptny

(Ltimate Benefciaries) ar

(b} peowide any guamantes, secunty o the like 1o or oo behalf the of the Ultmase BeneBcianes

{vil) The Company have nor reectved any fond from any peston(s) or endevies), incloding foreign entities (Funding Pamy) with the
understanding {whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

() diccetly oe indireetly kend o invest in other persons or entities identified in any manoer whatsoever by or on behalf the of the Funding
Party {Uldmate Bencficianss) o

) provide any guassntes, securiny or the like an behalf of the of the Ulgmare Bineboianies;

{viil) The Company does not bave any losns and pdvances in the nature of loans o pramaotens, directons, KMP and other telated paries
withoue tenmns or repayable on derand

(i) The Company does not have any tansscdon which is not reconded in the books of acconnts that hag been subsequentdy swrendered or
discloged as income dudng the year as pam of the on going tw assessments under the Income Tax Acr; 1961 (such as, sczech or survey or
any other celevant pronisions of the Income Tax Acr, 1961).

{x} The Company has not heen declared aswilful defauleer by any bank or financial tnsdnotion or government or any government authanty,
(xi} The Company docs not have investment in shares of any company therciore compliance for later of companies as presenbed undes
companies et 2013 are ot applivable

(i) The Company do ot bave any bnmevable propeny sherefore funler disclosure as required by company act is not applicalile.

(xifi} The Company docs not have any investment property.

(miv) Company is not required tosubmic smremene of cuttens assers with the bank and rthesefore reconeiliation of the starement filed by the
company with bank und the books of accounts b not applicable,

{xv) The Company hrs not eevalued any item of property, plant and equipment

{=zv1) ‘L'he Company does not have bomowings from banks and Anancial insorudons therefore furcher repomng = nor applicable

{x\-iil Ihtﬂmnplnr bave pot éntered knto nn]r w:hm:(:] of n.rmg:mm:s dmhgﬂu.- finandal year.

LEEREEEREEEREEEEEEER R EE R EFEEEEEEEEEREEEE R EEEEEEE e 7 PP



HSRC INFRA SERVICES LIMITED

HARE INERA SERVICES LAMITED
AP AHEIR D L202 GO0
FOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOIR THE YEAR ENDED NET MARCH 2025
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA
UNDER SECTION 143(6) (b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013, ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF HSRC INFRA SERVICES LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
MARCH 2025

The preparation of financial statements of HSRC Infra Services Limited for the year ended 31
March 2025 in accordance with the financial reporting framework prescribed under the
Companies Act, 2013, is the responsibility of the management of the Company. The Statutory
Auditor appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under Section 139 (5) of the
Act is responsible for expressing opinion on the financial statements under Section 143 of the Act,
based on independent audit in accordance with the standards on auditing prescribed under Section
143(10) of the Act. This is stated to have been done by them vide their Audit Report dated 21
May 2025.

I, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have decided not to conduct
supplementary audit of the financial statements of HSRC Infra Services Limited for the year ended
31 March 2025 under Section 143 (6)(a) of the Act.

For and on the behalf of the
Comptroller & Auditor General of India

2
Place: New Delhi /'fieg Singh

Dated:»].07.2025 Principal Director of Audit
Railway Commercial, New Delhi
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HSRC INFRA SERVICES LIMITED

(Formerly High Speed Rail Corporation of India Limited)
(A subsidiary of Rail Vikas Nigam Limited)

Regd. Office: R.No. 260, First Floor, August Kranti Bhawan,
Bhikaji Cama Place, R.K. Puram, New Delhi-110066
Ph.No.011-26738299
Email Id: info@hsrc.in, Website: http://hsrc.in/

Notice is hereby given that the 13" Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the members of HSRC Infra Services Limited
(“the company”) will be held on Tuesday, 12t August, 2025 at 1700 hrs. at the Registered Office of the Company i.e.,
Conference Hall, First Floor, August Kranti Bhawan, Bhikaji Cama Place, R.K. Puram, New Delhi-110066 in compliance
with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder to transact the businesses
set out in the Notice.

ORDINARY BUSINESS:
To consider, and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolutions as Ordinary Resolutions, with or without modifications:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the financial statements of the Company for the financial year ended 31*March,
2025 on that date and the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon and the comments of the
Comptroller and Auditor General of India (CAG) thereon.

2. To declare final dividend @ % 0.80 per equity share for the Financial Year 2024-25.

3. To appoint a director in place of Smt. Anupam Ban, (DIN: 07797026) who retires by rotation and being eligible,
offers himself for reappointment.

4. To authorize Board of Directors to fix the remuneration of Statutory Auditors for the financial year 2025-26.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the following resolution as Ordinary
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT the Board of Directors be and are hereby authorized to fix, the remuneration of the auditors
of the Company to be appointed by the office of the Comptroller & Auditor General of India for the financial year
2025-26."

SPECIAL BUSINESS:
5. To appoint Shri Mritunjay Pratap Singh (DIN: 08165734), as Director of the Company.

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as “Ordinary
Resolutions”:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 149, 152, 160 and other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder, Shri Mritunjay Pratap Singh (DIN: 08165734) who was
nominated as Director by Rail Vikas Nigam Limited, Holding Company vide letter no. RVNL/SECY/JVSPV/54 dated
08.11.2024 and subsequently, in terms of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013, appointed as an Additional
Director by the Board of Directors with effect from 07.11.2024 to hold office up to the date of this Annual General
Meeting and who has consented to act as director in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in
writing under Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013, be and is hereby appointed as Director, liable to retire by
rotation.”

By order of the Board of Directors
For HSRC Infra Services Limited
Sd/-
(Deepika Mehta)
Company Secretary
Date: 14.07.2025
Place: Delhi
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NOTES:

1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO
ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING INSTEAD OF HIMSELF AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF
THE COMPANY

2. THE INSTRUMENT APPOINTING PROXY, IN ORDER TO BE EFFECTIVE, MUST BE DEPOSITED AT THE
REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY ATLEAST 48 HOURS BEFORE THE COMMENCEMENT OF THE
MEETING. PROXY FORM IS ENCLOSED

3. An Explanatory Statement pursuant to section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’), relating to the
Special Business, to be transacted at the AGM, is annexed hereto.

4, A Proxy Form (MGT-11) is annexed to this Notice. Proxies submitted on behalf of company must be supported
by appropriate resolution or authority as applicable.

5. A person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding 50 (Fifty) and holding in the aggregate not
more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. In case a proxy is proposed to
be appointed by a member holding more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting
rights, then such proxy shall not act as a proxy for any other person or member.

6. Minimum of five members personally present will be quorum for the meeting.

7. Corporate members are requested to send a duly certified copy of the board resolution authorizing their
representatives to attend and vote at the meeting.

8. The documents referred to in the Notice of the AGM & related documents/registers etc. shall be available
electronically for inspection without any fee by the members from the date of circulation of this Notice up to
the date of AGM. Members seeking to inspect such documents can send an email to deepika.mehta@rvnl.org

9. The venue for 13" AGM shall be the Registered Office of the Company i.e., Conference Hall, First Floor, August
Kranti Bhawan, Bhikaji Cama Place, R.K. Puram, New Delhi-110066

10.  The Route Map of the venue of the Annual General Meeting forms part of this Notice.
To:
1. All the shareholders of the Company
2, M/s. Anil K. Goyal & Associates, Chartered Accountants (Statutory Auditors)
3. To all the Directors of the Company
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
ITEM NO.5:- To appoint Shri Mritunjay Pratap Singh (DIN: 08165734), as Director of the Company.

Shri Mritunjay Pratap Singh (DIN: 08165734) was nominated as Director by Rail Vikas Nigam Limited, (the Holding Company)
vide letter no. RVNL/SECY/JVSPV/54 dated 08.11.2024 and subsequently, in terms of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013,
appointed as an Additional Director by the Board of Directors with effect from 07.11.2024 to hold office up to the date of this
Annual General Meeting. He has consented to act as director and a notice in writing has been received by the company under
Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Shri Mritunjay Pratap Singh is interested in this resolution to the extent of his appointment as a Director / Shareholder of the
Company.

No Director, KMP and or their relatives, is/are interested or concerned, financially or otherwise in the resolution except may be
deemed to be concerned or interested in the proposed resolution to the extent of their shareholding in the Company.

The Board of Directors of the Company recommends the passing of resolution as an ordinary Resolution.

Details as required under ICSI Secretarial Standard (SS-2) are included in the Corporate Governance Report of the Annual
Report of the Company.

Name of
Companies | Committees of

No. of
Equity Qualifi-

Name of Relationship

Director : with other Nature of Expertise Which the Com}?anles
Shares cation . he holds of which
(DIN) Directors

held Directorship he holds
Membership

Mr. 10.06.1968 | 1 share of | - Bachelor i Shri Mritunjay Pratap Singh| Rail Vikas Rail Vikas
Mritunjay | g 57 years = Rs.10/- of Civil assumed the responsibility of | Nigam Ltd. Nigam Ltd
Pratap Engineering Director (Operations), RVNL on 1. Audit
Singh (Honors) 26.11.2024. Before joining as Committee
Director (Operations), he has been
working as Principal Executive 2. CSR
(DIN: « Master of Director (Works), Rail Vikas Committee
08‘]65734) Engineering ngam Limited. He is 1991 batch 3. Stakeholder
IRSE officer. After serving Indian Relationship
Railways in various capacities from Committee
- MBA 1992 to 2006, he joined RVNL and
since then has been associated 4. Risk
with project commissioning of Management
various challenging projects such Committee

as Aligarh Ghaziabad 3rd line,
Palwal Bhuteshwar 3rd line project,
Palanpur-Samakhiali doubling,
GC of Ahmedabad-Botad
Dhasa-Jatelsar and Vijayawada-
Bhimavaram-Narsapur doubling
etc.

He has been associated with
project delivery of 1500 km of
prestigious railway projects spread
across the country in capacity
of Executive Director and Chief
Project Manager, Rail Vikas Nigam
Limited. He was also instrumental
in securing various types of project
through competitive bidding.

As CEO of HSRC, he was associated
in finalizing feasibility studies
of Golden Quadrilateral of
High Speed in India. Under his
leadership PIUs of Secunderabad,
Ahmedabad received best PIU
Shield for consecutive 5 years.

He has also served as Board
Member of four Railway SPV’s of
RVNL.

He has also discharged
responsibility as Nodal Officer of
CSR Committee of RVNL.
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3. All the Directors of the Company
ROUTE MAP

Venue : Registered Office of the Company i.e., Conference Hall,
First Floor, August Kranti Bhawan, Bhikaji Cama Place, R.K. Puram,
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